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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of PLN, unless stated otherwise Note 2010 2009 (*)
Revenue 6 165 219 138 842
Cost of sales 6,8 (76 119) (74 477)
Gross profit 89 100 64 365
Other income 9 6 827 13282
Administrative expenses 8 (31457) (32830)
Other expenses 10 (2491) (1948)
Results from operating activities 61 979 42 869
Finance income 12 966 9572
Finance expenses (55 219) (42 306)
Net finance expense 11 (42 253) (32 734)
Share of loss of equity accounted investees (nefio€ome tax) (116) (1181)
Profit before income tax 19 610 8954
Income taxexpense 12 (5128) (1384
Profit for the period 14 482 7570

Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation differences for fore@perations (34) (240)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cdlwv hedges (3049) 16 144
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fis@l assets (382) (1241)
Income taxon other comprehensive income 579 (3067)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net ohicome tax (2 886) 11 596
Total comprehensive income for the period 11 596 19 166

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 10 248 3787
Non-controlling interest 4234 3783
Profit for the period 14 482 7570

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 7 367 15424
Non-controlling interest 4229 3742
Total comprehensive income for the period 11 596 19 166
Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings per share (PLN) 0,04 0,02
Diluted earnings per share (PLN) 0,04 0,02

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofaating policies, described in note 5.23

The consolidated statement of comprehensive incgimoeld be analyzed together with notes,
which constitute integral part of the consolidafiedncial statements
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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at
In thousands of PLN

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Prepaid perpetual usufruct of land
Investment property
Investments in associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term prepayments
Deferred taxassets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Short-term investments
Income taxreceivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term prepayments
Total current assets

Total assets

Note 31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 Janud@92(*)
13 18 019 16 254 17 408
14 792 571 730 668 798 055
- 116 116
15 3500 3786 4063
16 - 116 397
17 180 098 7 056 4269
18 - 16 170 20172
19 90 271 84 418 84 886
1084 459 858 584 929 366
1570 1813 1647
17 63 999 54 889 74 630
20 12 106 1975
21 19 903 31432 27719
22 212 815 130 846 114 639
18 - 184 108
298 299 219 270 220718
1382 758 1077 854 1150084

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes céaating policies, described in note 5.23

The consolidated statement of financial positioousth be analyzed together with notes,

which constitute integral part of the consoliddfiedncial statements
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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at
In thousands of PLN

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Eouity

Share capital

Share capital revaluation adjustment
Treasury shares

Share premiumreserve

Fair value reserve

Hedging reserve

Other reserve capitals and supplementary capital

Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings and uncovered losses

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Finance lease liabilities

Employee benefits liabilities

Deferred income and government grants
Other non-current liabilities

Provisions

Deferred taxliabilties

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Income tax liabilities

Trade and other payables
Employee benefits liabilities
Deferred income and government grants
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note 31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 Janud@92(*)
23
494 524 494 524 494 524
18 235 18235 18235
(20) (20) (20)
20916 20916 20916
23b (3390) (3013) (1813)
23c (3537) (1 067) (14 144)
2481 161 643 140 042
174 167 387
(531 955) (522 565) (504 731)
76 187 168 820 153 396
3895 3634 3682
180 082 172 454 157 078
25 329 876 122 395 65 877
26 479 646 660
27 2824 815 911
29 12 676 14796 15 849
28 182 284 185 475 191 853
30 514 698 448 982 493 796
19 6 - -
1042843 773 109 768 946
25 13 627 1470 1488
26 218 270 1420
32d, 33c 5269 1599 17 461
20 908 28 423
31 43944 65724 49 271
27 125 321 104
29 832 1053 1053
30 94 910 61 826 152 840
159 833 132 291 224 060
1202676 905 400 993 006
1382 758 1077 854 1150 084

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdwaating policies, described in note 5.23

The consolidated statement of financial positioousth be analyzed together with notes,

which constitute integral part of the consoliddfiedncial statements
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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of PLN Note 2010 2009 (*)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 19610 8 954

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation 8 37 164 34 455
Impairment of property, plant and equipment andngiible assets (310) 53
Profit from currency translation (32 (241)
Profit on investment activity (3889 (3439)
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant andipgent and

. : (80) 138
intangible assets

Interest and dividends 6 549 2901
Share in loss of associated entities 116 1181
Change in receivables 11 529 (3713)
Change in inventories 243 (166)
Change in prepayments 2800 443
Change in trade and other payables (12 333) 1359
Change in provisions 43 700 (33192)
Change in deferred income and government grants (2341) (1 053)
Proceeds/(expenditures) related to collateral retpeeby creditors 2200 (2 600)
Cash generated from operating activities 104 926 5080
Income tax paid (9423) (2 509)
Net cash from operating activities 95 503 2571

(*) - restated in relation to changes resultingrfn@statement of consolidated statement of finapdsition and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, described in note 5.23

The consolidated statement of cash flows shoulanadyzed together with notes,
which constitute integral part of the consolidafiedncial statements
6



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group

Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of PLN

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment proceeds

Sale of intangible assets and property, plant aydpenent
Dividends received

Interest received

Disposal of financial assets

Other proceeds

Investment expenditures

Acquisition of intangible assets and property, pamd equipment
Non-current deposits held for investment expendgur

Loans granted

Acquisition of financial assets

Other expenditures

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Financial proceeds
Loans and borrowings drawn

Financial expenditures

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Payment of payables upon finance lease

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Change in cash as in statement of financial positio

Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft, at January
Cash and cash equivalents net of bank overdraft, &1 December,
including:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Note

22

2010 2009 (*)
16 683 36 931
196 106
143 85
6 759 4800
9585 30 000
- 1940
(244 602) (70 494)
(55 894) (59 407)
(172 908) (187)
(600) -
(15 200) (10 000)
- (900)
(227 919) (33 563)
230 000 60 000
230 000 60 000
(15 615) (12 800)
(3 968) (3790)
(11 359) (7 521)
(288) (1 489)
214 385 47 200
81 969 16 208
81 969 16 208
130 846 114 638
212 815 130 846
180 159

(*) - restated in relation to changes resultingrfn@statement of consolidated statement of finapdsition and consolidated statement of

comprehensive income, described in note 5.23

The consolidated statement of cash flows shoulanadyzed together with notes,

which constitute integral part of the consolidafiedncial statements
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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

In thousands of PLN
) Other reserve Foreign Retained Total equit
Share Share capnal Treasury She}re Fair value Hedging capitals and currengcy earnings and attri butagle ?; Nonj Total
Note ) revaluation premium . controlling )
capital ) shares reserve reserve  supplementary translation uncovered  owners of the . equity
ad]ustment reserve . interest
capital reserve losses Company
As at 1 January 2009 494 524 18 235 (20) 20916 (1813) (14144) 140 042 387 (325 760) 332367 3753 336120
Changes of accounting policies - - - - - - - - (178 971) (178 971) (71) (179 042)
As at 1 January 2009 (*) 494 524 18 235 (20) 20916 (1813) (14144) 140 042 387 (504 731) 153 396 3682 157078
Profit for the period - - - - - - - 3787 3787 3783 7570
Other comprehensive income: - - - - (1200) 13077 9) (220) 11) 11637 (41) 11596
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cdlehv hedges 23c - - - - - 16 144 - - - 16 144 - 16 144
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fic@l assets 23b - - - - (1 200) - - - - (1 200) (41) (1241)
Foreign currency translation differences for fore@perations - - - - - - 9) (220) (11) (240) - (240)
Income taxon other comprehensive income - - . - - (3067) — - — (3067) - (3067)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - (1200 13077 9) (220) 3776 15424 3742 19166
Dividends paid - - - - - - - - - - (3790) (3790)
Distribution of profit - - - - - - 21610 - (21 610) - - -
As at 31 December 2009 (*) 494 524 18 235 (20) 20916 (3013) (1067) 161 643 167 (522 565) 168 820 3634 172454
. Other reserve Foreign Retained Total equit
Share Share cgpltal Treasury Sha'lre Fairvalue Hedging capitals and currengcy earnings and attributagle 'z) Non-' Total
Note . revaluation premium . controlling .
capital ) shares reserve reserve  supplementary translation uncovered  owners of the . equity
ad]ustment reserve . interest
capital reserve losses Company
As at 1 January 2010 494 524 18 235 (20) 20916 (3013) (1067) 161 643 167 (320 871) 370514 3711 374225
Changes of accounting policies - - - - - - - - (201 694) (201 694) (77) (201 771)
As at 1 January 2010 (*) 494 524 18 235 (20) 20916 (3013) (1067) 161 643 167 (522 565) 168 820 3634 172454
Profit for the period - - - - - - - - 10 248 10 248 4234 14482
Other comprehensive income: - - - - (377) (2470) 27) 7 (14) (2 881) (5) (2886)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cdlelv hedges 23c = = ® = - (3049 = ® = (3 049) - (3049
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fic@l assets 23b = = = = 377) = = ® = 377) ) (382)
Foreign currency translation differences for fore@perations ® ® = ® ® ® 27) 7 (14) (34) = (34)
Income taxon other comprehensive income - - - - - 579 - - - 579 - 579
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - (377) 2 470) 27) 7 10 234 7 367 4229 11596
Dividends paid - - - - - - - - - - (3968) (3968)
Distribution of profit - - - - - - 19 907 - (19 907) - - -
Changes in Capital Group - - - - - - (283) - 283 - - -
As at 31 December 2010 494 524 18 235 (20) 20916 (3390) (3537) 181 240 174 (531 955) 176 187 3895 180082

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdaating policies, described in note 5.23

The consolidated statement of changes in equityldhme analyzed together with notes,

which constitute integral part of the consolidafiedncial statements
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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

1. Group overview

Stalexport Autostrady S.A. (,the Company”) with #sat in Katowice, Mickiewicza 29 Street, is a pubsted
company registered in the National Court Registelen registration number KRS 16854.

The Company together with its subsidiaries constsuStalexport Autostrady S.A. Capital Group (“Goqu
“Capital Group”).

The business activities of the Group include thiefang:

» construction of roads and railroads, in particsknvices related to managing, construction by augpd the
requirements of toll motorway and exploitation lod section of A-4 motorway Katowice-Krakdw,

* management and business advisory,

* rental services.

As at 31 December 2010, beside the parent Complaaysroup comprised of the following entities:

Ownership Date of
Name of the entity Seat Qf the Main activities Status interest and obtaining Consolidation
entity o control/date method
voting rights .
of acquisition
Stalexport Autoroute S.ar.l. Luxemburgg  Managenaetivities Subsidiary 100% 2005 FU.” .
consolidation
Stalexport Autostrada . Construction and o o Full
Matopolska S.A. Mystowice operation of motorway Subsidiary 100% 1998 consolidation
Stalexport Transroute . . - o Full
Autostrada S.A. Mystowice Motorway operation Subsidiary 55% 1998 consolidation
Stalexport Autostrada : Construction and o 0 Full
Dolncslaska S.A. Katowice operation of motorway Subsidiary 100% 1997 consolidation
. Construction and : o ,
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. Katowice operation of motorway Associate 30% 2007 Equity methg
. , Real estate - o Full
Biuro Centrum Sp. z 0.0. Katowice administration Subsidiary 74.38% 2007 consolidation

* through Stalexport Autoroute S.ar.l.

The consolidated financial statements as at the adady for the year ended 31 December 2010 comprised

financial statements of the Company and its subseti and also Group’s share in net assets ofiatsec

The Capital Group is also included within the cdidsed financial statements of the parent entitihe highest
level Atlantia S.p.A. (Italy), a parent companyinter alia Autostrade per I'ltalia S.p.A., a mafgrshareholder

of the Company.

On 31 May 2010 the General Meeting of Stalexporto8uradaSlaska S.A. in liquidation (100% owned
subsidiary through Stalexport Autostrada Ddlaska S.A.) was held approving the liquidation staets and
Liguidator’s report on the activity of the compdfiay the period from 1 January to 28 May 2010. Rsilgy the
end of liquidation proceedings on 10 August 2016 Kational Court Register removed the company ftioen
register. These consolidated financial statememtspeise financial results of Stalexport Autostr&ttgska S.A.
in liquidation presented in the liquidation statemseof the company.



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

2. Basis of preparation of consolidated financial staments

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with the International Findncia
Reporting Standards as adopted by the Europeam@ilERS EU”) and other regulations in force.

The consolidated financial statements were approbgdthe Management Board of the Company on
28 February 2011.

IFRS EU contain all International Accounting Stamt$a(IAS), International Financial Reporting Startia
(IFRS) as well as related Interpretations of thterimational Financial Reporting Interpretations Quttee
(IFRIC) except for the Standards and Interpretativhich are awaiting approval of the European Urisnvell

as those Standards and Interpretations which haea lapproved by the European Union but are not yet
effective.

Basis of valuation

The consolidated financial statements have begraped on the historical cost basis, except fofdhewing:
» derivative financial instruments measured at falug,
» available-for-sale financial assets measured avédie,
» financial assets measured at fair value througfitpmoloss.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are preseirte@®olish zloty, being the functional currency and
presentation currency of the Group, rounded tothdlsands.

New standards and inter pretations not adopted

New standards, amendments to standards and inegipns that are effective for annual periods beigig after

1 January 2010, have not been applied in prepénege consolidated financial statements. Noneethanges
is expected to have a significant effect on thesotidated financial statements of the Group, exéaptFRS 9
Financial Instruments, which will become mandatory for the Group’s cditkied financial statements after the
approval by the EU and could change the classificatnd measurement of financial assets.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management Board makes judgments, estinaaits
assumptions that affect the application of poli@ed reported amounts of assets, equity and ligsiliincome
and expenses with respect to the Group. The est#matd associated assumptions are based on faktoric
experience and other factors that are believee treasonable under the circumstances and theseduwithich
form a basis for professional judgment on carryatues of assets and liabilities that are not tgaafiparent
from other sources. The actual results may difi@mfthese estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are redi@m an ongoing basis. Revisions to accountirighatts
are recognized in the period in which the estiniateevised, if the revision affects only that perior in the
period of the revision and future periods, if tegision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments and estimates made by the Managemend,Behich had significant impact on consolidated
financial statements, have been discussed in ddtek7, 19, 20, 21, 27, 28, 30, 32 and 36.
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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

3. Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have beguaped under the assumption that the Group willinaetto
operate as a going concern for the foreseeablecfutu

4. Information concerning the Concession Agreement

The activities of the Group include primarily busiis related to the management, construction bgftramation
to the toll motorway and operation of the secticstdvice — Krakéw of A-4 motorway, performed maity
the Company’s subsidiary, Stalexport Autostradaddalska S.A. (“Concession Holder”, “SAM S.A."). T¢we
activities are regulated by the concession agree(ff€ancession Agreement”).

The subject of the Concession Agreement is congpledf construction of the A-4 motorway (by transf@ation

to the toll motorway) on the section from Katowigenction Murckowska, km 340.2) to Krakow (junction
Balice I, km 401.1) and its subsequent operationval as conducting and completion of the remaining
construction works as specified in the Concessigredment.

The Concession Agreement has been concluded foneagqual to the term of the concession i.e. 30syea
ending in March 2027.

The Concession Agreement specifies the ways ofreathe revenues by the Concession Holder fromugiat
of the project. Principal revenues of the Concesblolder are:

a) toll revenues,

b) revenues due to reimbursement for the passatgpdi-ekempted vehicles.

Toll rates for the use of the toll motorway aforeniened in point (a) are set in accordance with:
- polish act on toll motorways,

- decree on detailed rules for establishing andsditlig rates of tolls for the use of the toll metay,
- resolutions of the Concession Agreement.

Conditions for revenue recognition as stated imp¢) above are set in accordance with polishoactoll
motorways, Concession Agreement and the decreeldit poads.

Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Conoesslolder shall have the right to use and receiafitp
from the road strip of the Motorway. The right mgés among other things the right to demolish entbre the
existing buildings, facilities, equipment, treesl gtants, subject to any relevant legal provisions.

In return the Concession Holder is responsibleteroperation and maintenance of the toll motorwatyl the
termination or expiry of the Concession Agreemeiich determines detailed range of the Concessimdef's
obligations, and is obliged to perform preciselgafied construction works.

As determined by the Concession Agreement, aftifiinfient of conditions therein defined, the Condess
Holder will be obliged to make concession paymetatsthe National Road Fund constituting so-called
subordinate debt (obligation due to loan receive®tate Treasury from the European Bank for Recocisbn
and Development (,EBRD”) for the purpose of finargithe construction of A-4 Toll Motorway Katowice-
Krakow taken over by the Concession Holder).

So far completed Phase | included the construaiifotoll collection system, implementation of maimi@ce
centre in Brzczkowice and construction of a communication andomeay traffic management system,
including an emergency communication system. Fuoithestment phases (Phase 1) in progress or tabéed
out include, among others, renovations of bridgksjelopment of junctions, construction of rest araad
works related to environmental protection meas(resstructions of noise screens, motorway drairsygéem,
passes for animals).

At the conclusion of the Concession Agreement igiet to use and receive profits from all buildingsuctures
and facilities constructed by the Concession Hold#ibe transferred to the State Treasury.

11



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

According to provisions of the Concession Agreentmttiveen SAM S.A. and the Minister of Infrastruetand
also of the Project Loan Agreement between SAM @Ad consortium of following banks: PEKAO S.A.,
DEPFA BANK PLC, KfW, WESTLB BANK POLSKA S.A. and WETLB AG (London Branch the
possibility of dividend payment by Stalexport Autasla Matopolska S.A. to its shareholder(s) depeaaf®ng
others, on completion of specified construction ggisa achieving minimum level of debt service ratansd
assuring the sufficient coverage of reserve acsount

5. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have beetieapo all periods presented in these consolidfitethcial
statements, and have been applied by Group enttieept for the ones described in note 5.22, whildiress
changes in accounting policies, in particular thdescribed in note 5.22 (iii) resulting from theplementation
of Service concession arrangemer{tsRIC 12) interpretation.

5.1. Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the paf@mmnpany. Control exists when the Company has theepo
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial angerating policies of an entity so as to obtaindfiés from its
activities. In assessing control, potential votifghts that presently are exercisable or convertise taken into
account. The financial statements of subsidianesrecluded in the consolidated financial staterméram the
date that control commences until the date thatrebceases.

(i) Associates

Associates are those entities for which the Gragdignificant influence, but not control, over fimancial and
operating policies. The consolidated financialestants include the Group’s share of the total neizeg gains
and losses of associates on an equity accountésl brasn the date that significant influence comeenuntil
the date that significant influence ceases. WhenGloup’s share of losses exceeds its interegt msaociate,
the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to nil aedognition of further losses is discontinued exdepthe
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constrl obligations or made payments on behalf ohssociate
or jointly controlled entity.

(iii) Consolidation adjustments

Intergroup balances, and any unrealized gains asse$ or income and expenses arising from intgogrou
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the daeed financial statements.

Unrealized gains arising from transactions wittoagdes are eliminated to the extent of the Grouperest in
the entity. Unrealized losses are eliminated inséime way as unrealized gains, but only to thenexttat there
is no evidence of impairment.

5.2. Foreign currencies

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies on the day arfigaction are translated into Polish zloty at thédwal Bank
of Poland average exchange rate for particularecgsr at the transaction date. Monetary assetsiabitities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balaneetstiate are translated at the average NBP rdtatatiate.
Foreign exchange differences arising on settlenoérfioreign transactions or balance sheet translatice
recognized in profit or loss for the period. Nonmatary assets and liabilities that are measurgerims of
historical cost in a foreign currency are transladt the average NBP rate at the date of the tcdinea Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated inidoreurrencies that are stated at fair value anestated at the
average NBP rate at the date the fair value wasméted.

12



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

(if) Conversionof foreign subsidiaries

The assets and liabilities of foreign operationgluding goodwill and fair value adjustments armgsion
acquisition are translated to Polish zloty at aerage NBP rate at the reporting date.

The income and expenses of foreign operations dixgjuforeign operations in hyperinflationary econesnare
translated to Polish zloty at average NBP ratethatdates of the transactions. The income and ergeof
foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies translated at average NBP rates at the repodite.
Foreign currency differences are recognised inrotmenprehensive income, and presented in the “gorei
currency translation reserve” in equity. When aigm operation is disposed of such that contrdignificant
influence is lost, the cumulative amount in thegtation reserve related to that foreign operasoreclassified
to profit or loss.

Prior to translating the financial statements okifgn operations in hyperinflationary economies,financial
statements for the current period including comipagadata are restated to account for changesergémeral
purchasing power of the local currency. The reptatd is based on relevant price indices at thertiegodate.
(iii) Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

Foreign currency differences arising on the retedims of a financial liability designated as a pedof a net
investment in a foreign operation are recognisedttirer comprehensive income to the extent thah#uge is
effective, and are presented within equity in tharéign currency translation reserve”. To the ekthat the
hedge is ineffective, such differences are recaghis profit or loss. When the hedged net investnien
disposed of, the relevant amount within equityrasferred to profit or loss as part of the profitloss on
disposal.

5.3. Service concession arrangements

Accounting policies applied for service concessiamngements have been described in note 5.22 (iii)

5.4. Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are measured at costdeamalated depreciation and impairment lossesrnste5.11).

Subsequent expenditures

Subsequent expenditures on capitalized intangibteta are capitalized only when they increase thaef
economic benefits embodied in the specific assettizh it relates. All other expenditures are ratngd as
incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a igin&line basis over the estimated useful livesméngible
assets unless such lives are indefinite. The estinsseful lives are as follows:

» intellectual property rights up to 5 years
¢ computer software up to 5 years
» licenses from 2 to 5 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residualugal are reviewed at each reporting date and adjufste
appropriate.

5.5. Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measatecost less accumulated depreciation and impatrme
losses (see note 5.11).

The cost includes the purchase price of the aasetgosts directly related to the purchase and tiimp of the
asset, so that it can be available for use, inolydhe transport, loading, unloading and storingtsoRebates,
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STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

discounts and other similar reductions decreasedbe The construction cost of property, plant agdipment
or assets under construction includes total costiried by the entity in the period of their constion,
assembly, adjustment and modernization till the ddittheir transfer to use (or up to the balanaesdate, if
the asset was not transferred to use before thid.dehe construction cost also includes prelimirestimates of
the cost of dismantling and removing the componehtangible fixed assets and the restoration ¢astchased
software that is integral to the functionality bétrelated equipment is capitalised as part ofafatpment.
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable lte ficquisition, construction or production of alifyiag asset
(an asset that necessarily takes a substantialdoefitime to get ready for its intended use oe)sahall be
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. @ang costs that are directly attributable to thugasition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset &osts which could have been avoided, if the ahpit
expenditure on qualified asset had not been indufiree capitalisation of borrowing costs as parthef cost of
a qualifying asset shall commence when expendifiorethe asset are being incurred, borrowing castsbeing
incurred and activities that are necessary to peclae asset for its intended use or sale are agress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall cease whkahstantially all the activities necessary to prepte
gualifying asset for its intended use or sale arapiete.

When parts of an item of property, plant and eqeéptrhave different useful lives, they are accouritedas
separate items of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of propeplgnt and equipment is determined by comparirg th
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amounthef property, plant and equipment, and is recogniss
within other income/other expenses in profit orslos

Reclassification to investment property

Property that is being constructed for future useénaestment property is accounted for as propgtgnt and
equipment and stated at cost until constructiodexelopment is complete, at which time it is resiféed as
investment property.

When the use of a property changes from owner-dedup investment property, the property is redfeeskas
investment property.
Subsequent expenditures

The Group recognizes in the carrying amount oftam iof property, plant and equipment, the cosepfacing
part of such an item when that cost is incurradig probable that the future economic benefitbedied with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost canmbeasured reliably. The costs of the day-to-dayicieg of
property, plant and equipment are recognised ifitmoloss as incurred.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment, relativtblgir significant and separate components, areedegied on a
straight — line basis over their estimated usefels, considering residual values. Land is not elepted.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and constructions 10-40 years
Plant and equipment 3-12 years
Vehicles 3-10 years
Other 1-10 years

If the estimated useful live of items of propegtjant and equipment attributable to the Conces8igreement
exceeds the period of Concession Agreement, theecdiegtion period is shortened to the remaining qukof
Concession Agreement.

The useful lives, depreciation methods and residaiales (if significant) are reassessed annually.
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5.6. Investment property

Investment property is a property held either tone@ntal income or for capital appreciation or fath.
Investment property is measured at cost less adateaudepreciation and impairment losses (seehaiB.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on aighialine basis over the estimated useful livesnvestment
property (residual values are taken into accodri® Group assumed 40-year period of economic ultffbr
the part of the building classified as investmewoipprty.

5.7. Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes sulabpamil the risks and rewards of ownership am&sslfied as
finance leases.

Upon initial recognition the leased asset is mesb@at an amount equal to the lower of its fair gadund the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Sulks¢do initial recognition, the asset is accourftadin
accordance with the accounting policy applicablth&d asset. Property, plant and equipment undanée lease
are depreciated in line with a policy applicablgtoperty, plant and equipment owned by the Gréfupis not
certain that at the conclusion of the lease agraethe ownership of the leased assets will be feared to the
Group, the assets are depreciated over the stodpperiod of the lease and economic useful lifehefassets.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leasesagportioned between reduction of the outstanding
liability and the finance expense. The finance ghais allocated to each period during the leasm téa
effective interest rate method.

Other leases which are not classified as finareseleontracts are treated as operating lease.
5.8. Perpetual usufruct of land

The Group classifies perpetual usufruct of landjesrating lease. The prepayments for perpetuakusudf
land are disclosed separately on the face of thedtinlated statement of financial position. Theppsenents for
perpetual usufruct are expensed to profit or Ingke period of lease.

5.9. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andesaizable value. The cost of inventories is dateed based on
the first in, first out principle. The costs inckuégxpenditure incurred in acquiring the inventoresl their
adoption for use or sale.

5.10. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups comprisggeta and liabilities) that are expected to be verea
primarily through sale rather than through contiguuse are classified as held for sale. Immedidtefpre
classification as held for sale, the assets (orpmomants of a disposal group) are remeasured irr@amoce with
the Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter, athatday of initial classification as held for salee assets (or
disposal group) are measured at the lower of tagitying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

5.11. Impairment

Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value throyagbfit or loss is assessed at each reporting tatketermine
whether there is objective evidence that it is iimgzh

A financial asset is impaired if objective evidenoéicates that a loss event has occurred afterirttial
recognition of the asset, and that the loss evadtehnegative effect on the estimated future dastsfof that
asset that can be estimated reliably.
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Objective evidence that financial assets (includeguity securities) are impaired can include: diéfan
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amalund to the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor sués will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance ofetive
market for a security. In addition, for an investimia an equity security, a significant or prolodgiecline in its
fair value below its cost is objective evidencéngpairment.

The Group considers evidence of impairment foriveddes and held-to-maturity investment securitieboth a
specific asset and collective level. All individlyakignificant receivables and held-to-maturity éstment
securities are assessed for specific impairment.

All individually significant receivables and held-maturity investment securities found not to becdjcally

impaired are then collectively assessed for anyaimpent that has been incurred but not yet idemtifi
Receivables and held-to-maturity investment sdesrithat are not individually significant are cotigely

assessed for impairment by grouping together rabéég and held-to-maturity investment securitie similar

risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Group udstiical trends of the probability of default, ting of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjuste management’'s judgement as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that theahtosses are likely to be greater or less thmgested by
historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial agsetasured at amortised cost is calculated as tifereatite
between its carrying amount and the present valubeoestimated future cash flows discounted atabset's
original effective interest rate. Losses are retghin profit or loss and reflected in an allowaraccount
against receivables. Interest on the impaired assatinues to be recognised through the unwindihghe
discount. When a subsequent event causes the anobuimipairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale investmsaturities are recognized by reclassifying the dess
accumulated in the fair value reserve in equitypnafit or loss. The cumulative loss that is renb#®m other
comprehensive income and recognized in profit ss e the difference between the acquisition castof any
principal repayment and amortization, and the curfar value, less any impairment loss previousigognized
in profit or loss. Changes in impairment provisi@atsibutable to application of the effective imst method are
reflected as a component of interest income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of apaired available-for-sale debt security increasebsthe increase
can be related objectively to an event occurringrahe impairment loss was recognised in profilogs, then
the impairment loss is reversed, with the amounthef reversal recognised in profit or loss. Howe\eety

subsequent recovery in the fair value of an imphameailable-for-sale equity security is recognisedther

comprehensive income.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financisgeds, other than biological assets, investmerepty

inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewesheh reporting date to determine whether theranis
indication of impairment. If any such indicationigt® then the asset’s recoverable amount is egtindtor
goodwill and intangible assets that have indefilites or that are not yet available for use, recable amount
is estimated annually.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carryingoamt of an asset or its cash-generating unit excésd
recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is th&llsst identifiable asset group that generatels flaws that
largely are independent from other assets and grolumppairment losses are recognised in profit @s.lo
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cashrgting units are allocated first to reduce theyiag amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and thernr@duce the carrying amount of the other asset®énuhit
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-gemgnatit is the greater of its value in use andaisvalue. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future dasls fare discounted to their present value usimyeatax
discount rate that reflects current market assestsntd the time value of money and the risks spetif the
asset. In case of assets, which do not generag@énmdent cash flows, value in use is estimatethfBosmallest
identifiable cash-generating unit to which the absdongs.
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An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is notveesed. In respect of other assets, impairmente$oss
recognised in prior periods are assessed at epohtirey date for any indications that the loss tesreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversdatiéfe has been a change in the estimates usedetonine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is revemsdd to the extent that the asset’s carrying amalags not
exceed the carrying amount that would have beeprméted, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Non-current assets held for sale

An impairment loss in respect of disposal groupliscated to assets on pro rata basis, excepnth&tss is
allocated to inventories, financial assets, detetax assets, employee benefit assets, which entio be
measured in accordance with the Group’s accoumptitigies. Impairment losses on initial classifioatias held
for sale and subsequent gains or losses on renesasor are recognised in profit or loss. Gains ae n
recognised in excess of any cumulative impairmesg.|

5.12. Equity

Until the end of 1996 the Group operated in a hipflationary economy. IAS 2%inancial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies requires restatement of each element of shareatdpipart from undistributed
profit and revaluation reserves) applying generddepindex, beginning from the moment the equityswa
introduced and till 31 December 1996. Retrospecépplication of IAS 29 influenced the increase bére
capital revaluation in correspondence with the el@se in retained earnings.

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increateaists directly attributable to the issue of pady shares and
share options are recognised as a deduction fraityeget of any tax effects.

Repurchase of treasury shares

When treasury shares are bought, the amount afdhsideration paid, including directly attributalolests, is
recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchsisacks are classified as treasury shares andegenped as
a deduction from total equity.

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve balance is the result of valuatbanges of cash flow hedging instruments, which are
considered effective and also respective changdsfefred tax.

5.13. Employee benefits

Retirement awards

The Group companies in accordance with Labour Gudtheir internal remuneration policies are obliged
payment of retirement awards.

The Group’s obligation resulting from retirementaads is measured by estimation of future salarg given
employee for the period in which an employee vahliceh retirement age and by estimation of futurieeraent
award. Retirement awards are discounted using mareasury bond return rate at the balance sheet @he
retirement award obligation is recognized propoity to the projected length of service of a giwsmployee.
Recognizing the liability due to retirement awarith® Group discloses total actuarial gains or ®&serofit or
loss, within the period in which they were indeietif

Jubilee bonuses
Some of the Group’s companies offer its employedilge bonuses which depend on the current lenfith o
service of a given employee and the current aver@generation in the industry.

The Group’s obligation resulting from jubilee boagss measured by estimation of future salary gfvan
employee for the period in which an employee wiicbme entitled to a particular jubilee bonus and by
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estimation of future jubilee bonus. Jubilee bonwwesdiscounted using market Treasury bond retataat the
balance sheet date. Recognizing the liability adupibilee bonuses, the Group discloses total aietugains or
losses in profit or loss, within the period in whithey were indentified.

Staff rotation is estimated on the basis of histdrdata and forecasts on level of employmenténftiture.

Short-term empl oyee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are meakarean undiscounted basis and are expensed asladked
service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expectedbie paid under short-term cash bonus if the Gimag a
present legal or constructive obligation to pag tinount as a result of past service provided éyethployee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

5.14. Provisions

A provision is recognized in the consolidated steget of financial position when the Group has a@nt legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a pasingvand it is probable that an outflow of econob®aefits will
be required to settle the obligation. If the effestmaterial, provisions are determined by disciognthe
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate #fddats current market assessments of the timesvaiumoney
and, where appropriate, the risk specific to thbeility. The unwinding of the discount is recoguises finance
cost.

(i) Provision for motorway resurfacing

Due to the obligation deriving from the Concessikmreement, which concerns operation and maintenafice
motorway, the Group recognizes a provision foresurfacing. The provision is recognized basedstimated
cost of resurfacing proportionally to the usagerdegThe estimated amount is discounted at thetiegalate.

(i) Provision for capital expenditures related teplacement and upgrade of infrastructure

Accounting policies applied to provision for capgapenditures of Phase Il are described in n@&2.6ii).b.
5.15. Revenue on sales

Goods sold
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured aiathedlue of the consideration received or recdijabet of
returns and allowances, trade discounts and votetrates.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized irfitpoo loss when the significant risks and rewanfs
ownership have been transferred to the buyer. Nentge is recognized if there are significant uraieties
regarding recovery of the consideration due, aasedicosts or the possible return of goods, orimaing
Group involvement with the goods.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recoghiseprofit or loss on a straight-line basis ovee term of
the lease. Lease incentives granted are recogasgsead integral part of the total rental income.

Revenue from motorway management and operation

Revenue from motorway operation is identified adowy to accrual principle, that is in respectivei@#s when
motorway lane is used.
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5.16. Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recogmigeafit or loss on a straight-line basis oves tarm of the
lease. Lease incentives received are recognised ssegral part of the total lease expense, dwetdrm of the
lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leasesagportioned between reduction of the outstanding
liability and the finance expense. The finance ghais allocated to each period during the leasm téa
effective interest rate method.

5.17. Financial income and expenses

Financial income comprises interest income on fundssted by the Group, dividend income, gains lun t
disposal of available-for-sale financial asset@&ngfes in the fair value of financial assets atValue through
profit or loss, and gains on hedging instrumentst thre recognised in profit or loss. Interest ineoim
recognised as it accrues, using the effective éstamethod. Dividend income is recognised on the theat the
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense onwiogs unwinding of the discount on provisions, rugpes in
the fair value of financial assets at fair valuptiyh profit or loss, impairment losses recognisedinancial
assets, and losses on hedging instruments thataognised in profit or loss. Borrowing costs that not
directly attributable to the acquisition, constiastor production of a qualifying asset are recegdiin profit or
loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reportedrnat basis as either finance income or finance dggénding
on whether foreign currency movements are in ajait or net loss position.

5.18. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and defeawedricome tax is recognised in profit or loss @tde the
extent that it relates to items recognised direictlgquity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on thebtexiacome of the year, using tax rates enactéldeateporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in resgqmevious years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance simeg¢hod, providing for temporary differences betwdles
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for ficial reporting purposes and the amounts usedafatibn
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for theviing temporary differences: the initial recogait of assets
or liabilities in a transaction that affects neitlhecounting nor taxable profit, differences relgtto investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probahk they will not reverse in the foreseeable futlireferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected tpiied to the temporary differences when they rewebased
on the laws that have been enacted or substantwelgted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extattitis probable that future taxable profits vikk available
against which temporary difference can be utili§eeferred tax asset is reduced to the extent thanio longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be di These reductions are reversed when it is plekbhat
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

5.19. Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the @i®Wbusiness that represents a separate majorofine
business or geographical area of operations thatbkan disposed of or is held for sale, or is aididry
acquired exclusively for future resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occpenudisposal or when the operation meets the ieriterbe
classified as held for sale, if earlier. When aprafion is classified as a discontinued operatite comparative
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consolidated statement of comprehensive incomesated as if the operation had been discontinued the
start of the comparative period.

5.20. Earnings per share (EPS)

In preparation of consolidated financial statemdatsic earnings per share is calculated by divittiegprofit or
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of tlen@any by the weighted average number of ordinhayes
outstanding during the period.

There were no factors that would result in dilutminearnings per share in the reporting periodsgeed in
these consolidated financial statements.

5.21. Financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivalaled deposits on the date that they are originatiédther
financial assets (including assets designatediatvddue through profit or loss) are recognizediatly on the
trade date at which the Group becomes a partyetadhtractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset whendh&actual rights to the cash flows from the asgefre, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractuah ddews on the financial asset in a transactionwinmich
substantially all the risks and rewards of owngrsbi the financial asset are transferred. Any &gerin
transferred financial assets that is created airetl by the Group is recognized as a separateadsability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andnttieamount presented in the consolidated stateafdimancial
position when, and only when, the Group has a lgght to offset the amounts and intends eithesettle on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settledbdity simultaneously.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

If the Group has the positive intent and abilityhold debt securities (State Treasury bonds andrstho
maturity, then such financial assets are classifiedheld-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity financialsats are
recognized initially at fair value plus any dirgctttributable transaction costs. Subsequent t@mimecognition
held-to-maturity financial assets are measuredmairtized cost using the effective interest methHeds any
impairment losses.

Any sale or reclassification of a more than indigant amount of held-to-maturity investments nlose to their
maturity would result in the reclassification of la¢ld-to-maturity investments as available-foresand prevent
the Group from classifying investment securitieshatd-to-maturity for the current and the followitgo
financial years.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value thgbuprofit or loss if it is classified as held foading or is
designated as such upon initial recognition. Firdrassets are designated at fair value througfit moloss if

the Group manages such investments and makes paradm@l sale decisions based on their fair value.
Attributable transaction costs are recognised ofifpor loss as incurred. Financial assets atValue through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, and ghaitherein are recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets wittdfior determinable payments that are not quoteuh iactive
market. Such assets are recognized initially at ¥alue plus any directly attributable transactioosts.
Subsequent to initial recognition loans and reddasmare measured at amortized cost using thetigffanterest
method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise loans granted, hasveade and other receivables.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deiafinancial assets that are designated as aleifabsale or
are not classified in any of the above categoridmancial assets.

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are meak@atefair value and changes therein, other tharaimpent
losses and foreign currency differences on avaitédnl-sale debt instruments, are recognised in aimfzed
statement of comprehensive income and presentéukifair value reserve in equity. When an investnign
derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated ineguiteclassified to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balandesalirdeposits with original maturities of thre@mths or
less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on deraaddorm an integral part of the Group’s cash manamnt
are included as a component of cash and cash éeplisdor the purpose of the consolidated stateraenash
flows.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognizes debt securities ébwand subordinated liabilities on the date thaty thre
originated. All other financial liabilities (inclinig liabilities designated at fair value througlofitror loss) are
recognized initially on the trade date at which Gm@up becomes a party to the contractual provésiminthe
instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability whés ¢ontractual obligations are discharged or céaxtabr
expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andnttieamount presented in the consolidated stateafdimancial
position when, and only when, the Group has a lgght to offset the amounts and intends eithesettle on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settledbdity simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative finahdiabilities: loans and borrowings and trade aribieo
payables.

Such financial liabilities are recognized initially fair value plus any directly attributable tracion costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition these financiabilities are measured at amortized cost usingefifective
interest method.

Derivative financial instruments, including hedge accounting
The Group holds derivative financial instrumentéiédlge its interest rate risk exposures.

On initial designation of the hedge, the Group faltyn documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument(s) and hedged item(s), including th& risanagement objectives and strategy in undertattieg
hedge transaction, together with the methods thHhtbs used to assess the effectiveness of theihgdg
relationship.

The Group makes an assessment, both at the ingeyftibe hedge relationship as well as on an onpbasis,
whether the hedging instruments are expected tbighly effective” in offsetting the changes in tfer value
or cash flows of the respective hedged items duiegperiod for which the hedge is designated,whether
the actual results of each hedge are within a rarig80-125 percent. For a cash flow hedge of acase
transaction, the transaction should be highly pbéb#o occur and should present an exposure tati@ms in
cash flows that could ultimately affect reportedfjror loss.

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair valutributable transaction costs are recognizedafitpor loss as
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, deties are measured at fair value, and changesithare
accounted for as described below.

When a derivative is designated as the hedginguimgnt in a hedge of the variability in cash floatgibutable
to a particular risk associated with a recognizegktor liability or a highly probable forecastaction that
could affect profit or loss, the effective portiof changes in the fair value of the derivativeésagnized in

21



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

other comprehensive income and presented in thgifgedeserve in equity. Any ineffective portionafanges
in the fair value of the derivative is recognizetrediately in profit or loss.

When the hedged item is a non-financial assetatheunt accumulated in equity is included in theaytag
amount of the asset when the asset is recognisedhér cases the amount accumulated in equisciagsified
to profit or loss in the same period that the hédggm affects profit or loss. If the hedging instrent no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expirds sold, terminated or exercised, or the designds revoked,
then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectiVeihe forecast transaction is no longer expedtbedccur,
then the balance in equity is reclassified in profiloss.

5.22. Changes in accounting policies during the reportiqgriod

(i) Accounting for acquisitions of non-controlling inteests

As a result of changes in IFRSBIsiness Combinations and IAS 27Consolidated and Separate Financial
Satements acquisitions of non-controlling interests are astded for as transactions with equity holders &irth
capacity as equity holders and therefore no goddsvilecognised as a result of such transactioreidusly,
goodwill was recognised arising on the acquisitifha non-controlling interest in a subsidiary arhtt
represented the excess of the cost of the additioviestment over the carrying amount of the irgeie the net
assets acquired at the date of exchange.

Moreover the term “non-controlling interest” (NQigplaces “minority interest”. At an acquisition eathe
acquirer may choose, on a transaction-by-transabtigis, whether to measure NCI at fair valuet th@NCI's
proportionate share of the net identifiable asséthe entity acquired. The revised IAS 27 requaasentity to
attribute the NCI's share of profit or loss to th€l even if this results in the NCI having a ddfizalance.

The changes in accounting policies were appliegp®ctively and had no influence on Group’s finandaa
for the period from 1 January till 31 December 201 the period in which the revised standardeevegplied
for the first time. The term “minority interest” waeplaced by “non-controlling interest”.

(i) Accounting for business combinations

As a result of changes in IFRSBisiness Combinations and IAS 27Consolidated and Separate Financial
Satements all business combinations occurring after 1 Jan&y0 will be accounted for according to the
policy described below.

The Group measures goodwill as the fair value efdbnsideration transferred including the recogh@mount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquireessléhe net recognised amount (generally fair vabiebhe
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assilirah measured as of the acquisition date.

Consideration transferred comprises the fair vabfabe assets transferred, liabilities incurredtey Group to
the previous owners of the acquiree, and equigrésts issued by the Group. Consideration tramsfeaso
includes the fair value of any contingent consitleraand share-based payment awards of the acqhia¢@re
replaced mandatorily in the business combinatiore (below). If a business combination results in the
termination of pre-existing relationships betwele@ Group and the acquiree, then the lower of tiraitation
amount, as contained in the agreement, and thee vafuthe off-market element is deducted from the
consideration transferred and recognised in otkeerses.

When share-based payment awards exchanged (reglacesmwards) for awards held by the acquiree’s
employees (acquiree’s awards) relate to past ssyviben a part of the market-based measure dvtlaeds
replaced is included in the consideration transferif they require future services, then the diffee between
the amount included in consideration transferred #e market-based measure of the replacement svisard
treated as post-combination compensation cost.

A contingent liability of the acquiree is assumadaibusiness combination only if such a liabiliépmresents a
present obligation and arises from a past eventjtarair value can be measured reliably.
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The Group measures any non-controlling intere&tiatvalue or its proportionate interest in theritit@able net
assets of the acquiree.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in conaeratiith a business combination, such as finders féegal
fees, due diligence fees, and other professiorthtansulting fees are expensed as incurred.

The changes in accounting policies were appliegp®ctively and had no influence on Group’s finandaa
for the period from 1 January till 31 December 201 the period in which the revised standardeevegplied
for the first time.

(i) IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements

Interpretation IFRIC 12, which gives guidance oe ticcounting by operators for public-to-privatevisr
concession arrangements, was endorsed by Europ@an Wwith the Commission Regulation (EC) No 254200
on 25 March 2009.

Stalexport Autostrady S.A. Capital Group, in acemrck with the provisions of abovementioned reguati
applied IFRIC 12 for the first time for the peristhrting on 1 January 2010. The changes in aceauptlicies
were applied retrospectively in accordance with B\Bccounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

and Errors. As a consequence data for comparative periodsepted in this consolidated financial statements
were restated (see note 5.23).

a) Accounting treatment of concession agreements under IFRIC 12

Under the terms of contractual arrangements withénscope of this IFRIC 12, the operator acts asrdice
provider. The operator constructs or upgrades strinature (construction or upgrade services — ¢venue is
recognised in accordance with IAS Canstruction contracts) used to provide a public service and operates and
maintains that infrastructure (operation servicéiserevenue is recognized in accordance with I8 &evenue)

for a specified period of time.

If the operator provides construction or upgradeises the consideration received or receivabléhbyoperator
shall be recognized in consolidated statement rdniial position as an asset. The consideration beay
recognized as:

» afinancial asset: The operator shall recognise a financial assétaextent that it has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or another firgrasset from or at the direction of the grantarthe
construction services;

* anintangible asset: The operator shall recognise an intangible asstte extent that it receives a right
(a licence) to charge users of the public serviceight to charge users of the public service it a0
unconditional right to receive cash because theuatscare contingent on the extent that the seiigice
rendered.

Under intangible asset model, the operator's rigits recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position under concession intangible &siethe fair value of construction or upgrade/ses.

It is amortised over the term of the arrangemeatiting from the beginning of rendering services to
public.

If the operator is paid for the construction sesgipartly by a financial asset and partly by aarigtble asset it
is necessary to account separately for each compasfethe operator’s consideration. The considerati
received or receivable for both components shaltdo®gnised initially at the fair value of the ciolesation
received or receivable.

Intangible asset model has been applied to the €simn Agreement, concerning Stalexport Autostrada
Matopolska S.A. (see note 4).

The operator may have contractual obligations istfulfil as a condition of its licence (a) to m&im the
infrastructure to a specified level of serviceapilbr (b) to restore the infrastructure to a spedifcondition
before it is handed over to the grantor at the @hthe service arrangement. These contractual atidigs to
maintain or restore infrastructure, except for aogr element shall be recognised and measured dimdacce
with 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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In line with adopted interpretation of IFRIC 12, evhthe contract requires the operator to incurnguthe
concession period capital expenditures relatedefacement independently of the use of the conmessi
infrastructure during the concession, these cagixglenditures should be included in concessiomgiléde
asset’s cost. Bearing in mind, that these outflavesnot contingent on use of infrastructure, theratpr should
recognise a provision in accordance with IAS 37lwihe above mentioned intangible asset as a gameig
item) for the present value of the best estimatdh@famount of the future replacement costs tanberied due
to obligation undertaken. The provision shall beognized when the obligation is accepted.

b) Implementation of IFRIC 12 by Stalexport Autostrady SA. Capital Group

In accordance with IAS 8, the Group applied IFRIZ retrospectively, since the date the Concession wa
granted (year 1997), i.e. the moment when the Gemgepted an obligation to construct/adapt and taiaithe
motorway.

As the result of IFRIC 12 implementation, the Graapognised an intangible asset as the considergii@n
for the adaptation of motorway to toll motorway ugements (Phase 1) and for construction/upgradeksyo
which according to the Concession Agreement wellgetexecuted in later periods (Phase Il). The ocbghe
element of the intangible asset recognized inicglab Phase | expenditures, was defined as theevalfl costs
incurred during its execution (including borrowingsts) and the cost of the element of the intapgisset
recognized in relation to estimated costs of PHswas determined as the present value of thoserdu
outflows at the date of initial recognition (withtdaorrowing costs recognition).

In line with applied interpretation, the elementtbé intangibles recognized in relation to obligatio bear
Phase Il expenditures, was recorded in correspaedaith the provision. A present value of futurdfiows
was calculated, through discounting of their estadanominal value, using non-current risk-free riese rate,
which was determined by the Group on the basissbbtical and current return on non-current Treg8onds.

All changes in provision’s estimates due to:
- changes of interest rates;

- changes of construction works schedule;

- changes in capital expenditures estimates;

are reflected in the valuation of intangible assétsaccordance with IAS 8 they impact the consdbd
statement of comprehensive income prospectivelingbeecognized in the period of change and in fitur
periods, if they are also affected by the change.

The unwinding of the discount related to provisi®necognized as finance expense of the period.

Concession intangible assets comprise also an ptemelassified from property, plant and equipmevttich
cost was determined as the present value of disedwoncession payments (see also note 28) atatieeod
their recognition i.e. TPLN 96,364.

According to IAS 38ntangible Assets, an intangible asset with a finite useful lifesisbject to amortization over
its useful life.

The concession intangible asset is to be amorfiged the beginning of toll collection (year 2000)til the
expiration date of the Agreement (year 2027).

Using IAS 38 guidelines, the Group applied amotiimamethod, which in its view reflects in most apmpriate
way the manner in which future economic benefitdviteg from intangible asset will be consumed, uait of
production method based on forecasted annual awdraffic increase during the concession periodthan
section of motorway subject to concession.

The impact of the abovementioned changes on calagetl financial statements of the Group was predent
note 5.23mpact of changes of accounting policies and other changes on the consolidated financial statements.
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5.23.

Consolidated statement of financial position

Impact of changes of accounting policies and otfdranges on the consolidated financial statements

Inthousands of PLN 31 December 2009 impact IFRIC 12 other changes (6) D¥cember 2009 1 January 2009 impact IFRIC 12 other dg@s (6) 1 January 2009
published restated published restated
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 509 927 (478 030§1) (15 643) 16 254 469 610 (436 607)1) (15 595) 17 408
Intangible assets 1081 729 582) - 730 668 982 797 07R) 798 055
Prepaid perpetual usufruct of land 116 - - 116 116 - - 116
Investment property 4318 (532) 3786 4609 (546) 4063
Investments in associates 116 - 116 397 - 397
Other long-term investments 7 056 - 7 056 4269 - 4269
Long-term prepayments 6341 - 9829 16 170 7363 - 12 809 20172
Deferred taxassets 37113 47 1513) 148 84418 42903 418983) 85 84 886
Total non-current assets 566 068 298714 (6 198) 858 584 530 249 402 364 (3247) 929 366
Current assets
Inventories 1813 1813 1647 1647
Short-term investments 54 889 54 889 74 630 74630
Income taxreceivables 106 106 1975 1975
Trade and other receivables 31432 31432 27719 27719
Cash and cash equivalents 130 846 130 846 114 639 114 639
Short-term prepayments 184 184 108 108
Total current assets 219270 219270 220718 220718
Total assets 785 338 298714 (6 198) 1077 854 750 967 402 364 (3 247) 1150084
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 494 524 494 524 494 524 494 524
Share capital revaluation adjustment 18235 18235 18 235 18235
Treasury shares (20) (20) (20) (20)
Share premiumreserve 20916 20916 20916 20916
Fair value reserve (3013) (3013) (1813) (1813)
Hedging reserve (1067) (1067) (14 144) (14 144)
Other reserve capitals and supplementary capital 6481 161643 140 042 140 042
Foreign currency translation reserve 167 - - 167 387 - - 387
Retained eamings and uncovered losses (320 871) 02201(4) (670) (522 565) (325 760) (178 616}) (355) (504 731)
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company J0514 (201 024) (670) 168 820 332367 (178 616) (355) 153 396
Non-controlling interest 3711 77) 3634 3753 (71) 3682
Total equity 374225 (201 024) (747) 172 454 336 120 (178 616) (426) 157 078
Liahilities
Non-current liabiliies
Loans and borrowings 128 216 (5821) 122 395 69 040 (3163) 65877
Finance lease liabilities 646 - 646 660 - 660
Employee benefits liabilties 497 318 815 592 319 911
Deferred income and government grants 14 796 - 14 796 15 849 - 15849
Other non-current liabilities 185475 - 185475 191 853 - 191853
Provisions 6508 442 47(5) - 448 982 4646 489 1505) - 493 796
Total non-current liabilities 336138 442 474 (5503) 773109 282 640 489 150 (2 844) 768 946
Current liahilities
Loans and borrowings 1470 1470 1488 1488
Finance lease liabilities 270 270 1420 1420
Derivative financial instruments 1599 1599 17 461 17461
Income tax liabilities 28 28 423 423
Trade and other payables 65724 - 65724 49 271 - 49271
Employee benefits liabilities 269 52 321 81 23 104
Deferred income and government grants 1053 - 1053 1053 - - 1053
Provisions 4562 57 2645) - 61826 61010 91 83Q5) - 152 840
Total current liahilities 74 975 57 264 52 132 291 132 207 91 830 23 224 060
Total liahilities 411113 499 738 (5451) 905 400 414 847 580980 (2821) 993 006
Total equity and liabilities 785 338 298 714 (6 198) 1077854 750 967 402 364 (3 247) 1150084

(1) Derecognition of infrastructure under the contrbklee grantor, which is used by the Group to render
public services (previously recognised as prop@tgnt and equipment);

(2) Recognition of an intangible asset as describeubia 5.22 (iii);
(3) Total impact of IFRIC 12 adjustments on deferredassets;

(4) Total impact of IFRIC 12 adjustments on retainethies and uncovered losses, including profit/loss
for the period,;

(5) Recognition of provision in relation to intangibkesset, at fair value of future estimated capital
expenditures of Phase Il;
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(6) (i) Adjustment for recognition of finance and legalvisory costs, that were previously accounted as
cost of property, plant and equipment and the fiesuladjustment of settlement of loan based on
effective interest rate method, as well as (iiJassification of property, plant and equipment imeotly
recognized as investment property in previous yaadsthe corresponding adjustment of depreciation o
these assets (iii) adjustment for recognition afit@hal employee benefit liabilities.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

In thousands of PLN 2009 impact IFRIC 12 other changes (4) 2009
published restated
Revenue 138 842 - - 138 842
Cost of sales (68 261) (6 053)(1) (163) (74 477)
Gross profit 70581 (6 053) (163) 64 365
Other income 13282 - - 13282
Administrative expenses (32 915) - 85 (32 830)
Other expenses (1948) - - (1 948)
Results from operating activities 49 000 (6 053) (78) 42 869
Finance income 9572 - - 9572
Finance expenses (20 386) (21 614)(2) (306) (42 306)
Net finance expense (10 814) (21 614) (306) (32734)
Share of loss of equity accounted investees (netimfome tax) (1181) - - (1181)
Profit before income tax 37 005 (27 667) (384) 8954
Income taxexpense (6 706) 5259(3) 63 (1384)
Profit for the period 30 299 (22 408) (321) 7570

Other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation differences for fore@perations (240) - - (240)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of céohv hedges 16 144 - - 16 144
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fic@l assets (1 241) - - (1 241)
Income taxon other comprehensive income (3067) - - 0603
Other comprehensive income for the period, net ohicome tax 11 596 - - 11 596
Total comprehensive income for the period 41 895 (22 408) (321) 19 166

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 26 510 (22 408) (315) 3787
Non-controlling interest 3789 - (6) 3783
Profit for the period 30 299 (22 408) (321) 7570

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 38147 (22 408) (315) 15424
Non-controlling interest 3748 - (6) 3742
Total comprehensive income for the period 41 895 (22 408) (321) 19 166

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (PLN) 0,11 (0,09) - 0,02
Diluted earnings per share (PLN) 0,11 (0,09) - 0,02

(1) Total impact of property, plant and equipment gtisline method depreciation reversal and accogntin
for unit of production method (natural method) atization of intangible assets;

(2) Unwinding of the discount related to the provisfonfuture capital expenditures of Phase Il;
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(3) Total impact of IFRIC 12 adjustments on deferredfta the period;

(4) (i) Adjustment of settlement of loan based on d@ffe interest rate method (see adjustment 6 in
consolidated statement of financial position), @gjustment to depreciation of property, plant and
equipment incorrectly recognized as investment gmypin previous years, (iii) reclassification of
renovation costs concerning the part of office dingy subject to rental in amount of TPLN 62 and
reclassification of depreciation attributed to prap, plant and equipment subject to rental in amhad
TPLN 57 and (iv) adjustment for recognition of admhial employee benefit liabilities.

6. Segment reporting

The Group presents its activity in business segsehat are based on the Group’s management agchaht
reporting structure.

The Group operates in one geographical segmenblewlvenue is earned in Poland.
Business segments
Business segments include:

* management, advisory and rental services,

* management and operation of motorways.

Business segments results

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Management, advisory Management and

andrental senices operation of motorways L
Operating revenues
Revenue from external customers 9329 155 890 165 219
Total revenue 9 329 155 890 165 219
Operating expenses
Cost of sales to external customers (8313) (67 806) (76 119)
Total cost of sales (8 313) (67 806) (76 119)
Other income 2181 4 646 6 827
Other expenses (561) (1 930) (2491)
Administrative expenses (*) (11 591) (19 866) (31 457)
Results from operating activities (8 955) 70934 61 979
Net finance income/(expense) 4936 (47 189) (42 253)
Share of loss of equity accounted investees (nieicoime tax) (116) - (116)
Income tax (32 (5 096) (5128)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (4 167) 18 649 14 482
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax (416) 2 470) (2 886)
Total comprehensive income for the period (4 583) 16 179 11 596
Major non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation (750) (36 414) (37 164)
Recognition of taxreceivables 392 - 392
Other provisions (341) (1 428) (1769)
Creation or reversal of allowances 1724 297 2021
Unwinding of discount - (31 248) (31 248)
Revaluation of concession payments (3225) - (3225)
Revaluation of investment 484 - 484

(*) - Administrative expenses in "M anagement, adisand rental services" segment comprise all adinative expenses of the Parent Entity
Stalexport Autostrady S.A.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

Management, advisory  Management and

andrental services operation of motorways Total ()
Operating revenues
Revenue from external customers 9173 129 669 138 842
Total revenue 9173 129 669 138 842
Operating expenses
Cost of sales to external customers (8 230) (66 247) (74 477)
Total cost of sales (8 230) (66 247) (74 477)
Other income 10458 2824 13 282
Other expenses (569) (1379) (1 948)
Administrative expenses (**) (12 035) (20 795) (32 830)
Results from operating activities (1 203) 44 072 42 869
Net finance income/(expense) 4453 (37 187) (32 734)
Share of loss of equity accounted investees (niicoime tax) - (1181) (1181)
Income tax (5) (1379) (1 384)
Profit/(Loss) for the period 3245 4325 7570
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax () 481 13077 11 596
Total comprehensive income for the period 1764 17 402 19 166
Major non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation (794) (33 661) (34 455)
Recognition of taxreceivables 3100 - 3100
Other provisions (40) (1 326) (1 366)
Creation or reversal of allowances 7034 (53) 6981
Unwinding of discount - (29 724) (29 724)
Revaluation of investment 202 - 202

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes of acamyplicies, described in note 5.23

(**) - Administrative expenses in "Management, advisangl rental services" segment comprise all adminiser&ipenses of the Parent Entity
Stalexport Autostrady S.A.

Financial position according to business segmentsat

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 January 2(09

Management, advisory and rental senices

Assets of the segment 163 062 174 193 191 826
Liabilities of the segment 52714 64 056 76 027
Management and operation of motorways

Assets of the segment 1219 696 903 661 958 258
Liabilities of the segment 1 149 962 841 344 916 979
Total assets 1382 758 1077854 1150 084
Total liabilities 1202676 905 400 993 006

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes odaating policies, described in note 5.23

Major customer

In years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 Decembérr296nue from State Treasury for the passagellef to
exempted vehicles amounted to TPLN 37,834 and TB2N12 respectively and constituted more than 10% o

total revenue (including the effect of provisioesagnized for revenue reduction).

7. Disposal group classified as held for sale and dsetinued operations

As at 31 December 2010, 31 December and 1 Jan@®¥ the Group wasn'’t in possession of any assets or

liabilities classified as held for sale.
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8. Expenses by kind

2010 2009 (*)

Depreciation and amortisation (notes 13, 14, 15) 1639 (34 455)
Energy and materials consumption (7 820) (6 524)
A_ccrual of p_rO\_/is ion for motorway resurfacir}g (19 224) (20 382)
disclosed within cost of sales (external services)
Other external services (17 565) (18 821)
Taxes and charges (1 210) (1 078)
Personnel expenses, including: (22 398) (23 113)
- wages and salaries (19 267) (19 832)
- compulsory social security contributions and othe (3131) (3 281)
benefits
Other costs (2 450) (2987)
Total expenses by kind (107 831) (107 360)
Change in inventories, deferred income and cost in

) . L 255 53
relation to operating activity
Cost of sales and administrative expenses (107 576) 107 307)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofwating policies, described in note 5.23

9. Other income

2010 2009
Rental income from passenger service sites 2191 2152
Reversal of allowances for receivables 1711 7044
Reversal of property, plant and equipment and 310 i
intangible assets impairment
Compensations and contractual penalties received 0519 426
Reimbursed costs of court proceedings 23 44
Interest from receivables 4 54
Recognition of taxreceivables 392 3100
Other 291 462
6 827 13 282
10. Other expenses
2010 2009

Donations granted (87) -
Penalties, compensations, payments (393) (179)
Other provisions and allowances (1 769) (1419
Net Ipss or? disposal of property, plant and equigme (160) (61)
and intangible assets
Interest from liabilities (5) (93)
Other 77) (196)

(2 491) (1948)
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11.Net finance expense

Recognised in profit or loss for the period
Dividends and share in related parties profits
Interest income, including:

- bank accounts and deposits

- loans granted

- other

Revaluation of investments

Other financial income, including:

- net foreign exchange gain

- profit on investment in asset management funidarftial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss)
- other financial income

Financial income

Interest expense on liabilties measured at anedteost, including:
- loans and borrowings, including:
- nominal
- other
- discount of concession payments
- other
Discount of provisions
Other financial costs, including:
- alowance for interest accrued
- revaluation of concession payments (measuradnattised cost;
see note 28)
- loss on derivatives
- other financial costs
Financial expenses

Net finance expense recognised in profit or lossrfthe period

Recognised in other comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation differences for fore@perations
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cdliv hedges
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale fic@l assets

Net financial income/(expenses) recognised in otheomprehensive
income, net of tax

2010 2009 ()

143 85
8826 5524
8813 5332

12 -
1 192

484 202
3513 3761

189 423
3316 3237

8 101
12 966 9572
(25 558) (18 472)
(16 181) (8 126)
(11 763) (4 998)
(4 418) (3128)
(6577) (6 613)
(2 800) (3733)
(24 671) (23 111)
(4 990) (723)
- (10
(3 225) -
(1 760) (603)
®) (110)
(55 219) (42 306)
(42 253) (32 734)
(34) (240)
(3 049) 16 144
(382) (1 241)
(3 465) 14 663

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofaating policies, described in note 5.23
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12.Income tax

Income tax recognized in profit or loss for the peiod

2010 2009 (*)
Current income tax expense (10 396) (3983)
Deferred tax expense 5268 2599
Creation/ reversal of temporary differences 5268 2599
Income tax impacting profit for the period (5128) (1384)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdwaating policies, described in note 5.23

The income tax rate which embraced the Group'vifictivas 19% in 2009-2010. It is assumed that tlveine
tax rate shouldn’t change in upcoming years.

Effective tax rate

2010 2009 (*)

% %
Profit before income tax 19610 8 954
Income taxusing the domestic corporate taxrate 9,0%) (3726) (19,0%) (2 701)
Permanent differences 0,2% 42 (8,9%) (794)
Valugtlon adqutment / temporary differences (7.4%) (1 444) 12.4% 1111
previously adjusted

(26,1%) (5128) (15,5%) (1384)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cfaating policies, described in note 5.23

Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

2010 2009
Before tax Tax (expgns ey Before tax Tax (expe.ns ey
benefit benefit
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash (3049) 579 16 144 (3 067)
flow hedges(*)
(3 049) 579 16 144 (3 067)

(*) - cash flow hedges are further described ireac@&2d and 33c
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Bmldmgs_and Plgnt and Vehicles Other Under_ Total
constructions equipment construction
Costas at 1 January 2009 (*) 18 485 26 376 10983 4469 307 60 620
Acquisitions 7 177 463 25 2255 2927
Transfer f_rom property, plant and equipment under 532 518 124 81 (1 270) (15)
construction
Recognition due to stock-taking - 34 - - - 34
Disposals - (518) (850) (45) (860) (2273)
Reclassifications - (6) - 6 - -
Cost as at 31 December 2009 (*) 19024 26 581 10720 4536 432 61 293
Costas at 1 January 2010 (*) 19 024 26 581 10 720 4536 432 61 293
Acquisitions 1 484 1450 16 2132 4083
Transfer f'rom property, plant and equipment under 1606 : 406 i (2012) i
construction
Disposals (199) (1038) (831) (1355) - (3423)
Reclassifications - 43 43) - - -
Cost as at 31 December 2010 20432 26 070 11 702 3197 552 61 953

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofatting policies, described in note 5.23
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Depreciation and impairment losses
as at 1 January 2009 (*)
Depreciation for the period
Recognition due to stock-taking
Disposals

Reclassifications

Depreciation and impairment losses
as at 31 December 2009 (*)

Depreciation and impairment losses
as at 1 January 2010 (*)
Depreciation for the period
Disposals

Reclassifications

Reversal of impairment loss
Depreciation and impairment losses
as at 31 December 2010

Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2009 (*)

At 31 December 2009 (*)
At 1 January 2010 (*)

At 31 December 2010

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofwaating policies, described in note 5.23
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Bwldmgs'and Plgnt and Vehicles Other Under. Total
constructions equipment construction
(7 028) (24 159) (7 673) (4 095) (257) (43212)
(839) (747) (1045) (337) - (2 968)
- (34) - - - (34)
8 512 621 34 - 1175
- 6 - (6) - -
(7 859) (24 422) (8 097) (4 404) (257) (45 039)
(7 859) (24 422) (8097) (4 404) (257) (45 039)
(929) (770) (579) (84) - (2 362)
125 1048 682 1355 - 3210
- (43) 43 - - -
- - - - 257 257
(8 663) (24 187) (7 951) (3 133) - (43 934)
11 457 2217 3310 374 50 17 408
11165 2159 2623 132 175 16 254
11 165 2159 2623 132 175 16 254
11 769 1883 3751 64 552 18 019



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

Impairment losses

As at 31 December 2010 there were no indicatoes, wWould require the Group to test property, pland
equipment for impairment. Within presented compeaeatiata as at 31 December and 1 January 2009 an
impairment loss was recognized on property, plagt @quipment under construction in the amount dfN'P
257, due to some investment projects being putodsh h

Leased plant and machinery

The Group leases certain equipment and vehiclesrumdumber of finance lease agreements. At 31Dieee
2010, the net carrying amount of leased plant aachinery was TPLN 920 (31 December 2009: TPLN 1,076
January 2009: TPLN 1,469). The leased equipmentregdease obligations.

Collateral

In addition to non-current assets described abawvat 31 December 2010 property, plant and equipwigm a
carrying value of TPLN 12,307 (31 December 2009LNRL1,880, 1 January 2009: TPLN 13,174) provided a
collateral for bank loans and overdrafts. Moreowemrder to secure the payment of other liabgiti&roup’s
tangible assets were subject to mortgage for ttaé amnount of TPLN 1,155 as at 1 January 2009.dndbnber
2009 the Group received a notice from the Dist@ourt Katowice-Wschdd advising that the mortgags wa
stroke off.

Property, plant and equipment under construction

At 31 December 2010, property, plant and equiproeder construction include mainly design and indepat
engineer costs related to toll collection systeptagement project.
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14.Intangible assets

Other concessions

Concession . ' Other intangible Intangible assets

. . licences, software Total

intangible assets assets not ready for use
Cost as at 1 January 2009 (*) 907 018 624 1248 843 909 733
Acquisitions - 150 150 300
Transfer fromintangible assets not ready for use - 710 - (710) -
Revaluation of concession intangible assets (36 441) - - - (36 441)
Disposals - 7) (21) - (28)
Cost as at 31 December 2009 (*) 870577 1477 1227 283 873 564
Costas at 1 January 2010 (*) 870577 1477 1227 283 873564
Acquisitions - 68 10 78
Transfer fromintangible assets not ready for use - 134 - (134) -
Revaluation of concession intangible assets 96 284 - - - 96 284
Disposals - (291) (257) = (548)
Cost as at 31 December 2010 966 861 1388 970 159 969 378
Amortisation and impairment losses as at (109 945) (590) (1 143) ) (111 678)
1 January 20009 (*)
Amortisation for the period (31057) (84) (54) - (31 195)
Disposals - 8 22 - 30
Impairment loss - (53) (53)
Amortisation and impairment losses as at
31 December 2009 () (141 002) (719) (1175) - (142 896)
Amortisation and impairment losses as at (141 002) (719) (1 175) _ (142 896)
1 January 2010 (*)
Amortisation for the period (34 342) (118) (50) - (34 510)
Disposals - 291 255 - 546
Reversal of impairment loss - 53 - - 58
Amortisation and impairment losses as at
31 December 2010 (175 344) (493) (970) - (176 807)
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2009 (*) 797 073 34 105 843 798 055
At 31 December 2009 (*) 729 575 758 52 283 730 668
At 1 January 2010 (*) 729 575 758 52 283 730 668
At 31 December 2010 791 517 895 - 159 792 571

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdaating policies, described in note 5.23

During the current period the Group revalued cosicesintangible assets recognized in relation toneded
costs of Phase II:

a) due to changes of discount rates used for vafuat provision for capital expenditures of Phés@see note
30), which resulted in their increase by TPLN 2,508

b) due to changes of estimates regarding construetorks schedule and capital expenditures, whicloraing
to the Concession Agreement are to be executeleb§gtoup by the end of the concession period (s&e30),
resulting in the increase of concession intangaiskets by TPLN 94,086.

The amortization charge on concession intangildetass recognized in cost of sales. The amonbizatharge
on other intangible assets is recognized in adinatige expenses.

The annual amortization rate calculated based tmated traffic increase during the concessionqukein
relation to present net value of intangible assétebeginning of the period equalled 4.67% irh@ster 2010
(I Semester 2009: 3.93%), 4.78% in Il Quarter 2Q1I0Quarter 2009: 3.93%) and 4.84% in IV Quar2&10
(IV Quarter 2009: 3.93%). According to current atization schedule, based on updated estimatesaffictr
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increase, the proportion of annual amortizationsts the carrying value of intangible asset a3labDecember
2010 will range from 4.48% to 7.45% during the @s®ion period.

As at 31 December 2010 there were no indicatoed, would require the Group to test concession gitde
assets for impairment. As at 31 December 2010,Ghaup did not identify any indications for impairme
related to other intangible assets (31 Decembe®:ZDPLN 53, 1 January 2009: none).

15.Investment property

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*)

Cost at the beginning of the period 11 683 11 668
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 6 15
under construction

Cost at the end of the period 11 689 11683
Depreciation and impairment losses (7 897) (7 605)

at the beginning of the period
Depreciation for the period (292) (292)
Depreciation and impairment losses

at the end of the period (8 189) (7.897)
Carrying amounts at the beginning of the period 378 4063
Carrying amounts at the end of the period 3500 3786

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdwaating policies, described in note 5.23

Investment property is measured at cost less adatgdudepreciation and impairment losses.
Investment property comprises a part of officedingy designated for rental.

Based on property expert's valuation conductedulg 2010, the fair value of the building, part ohieh was
classified as investment property, and the faiueabf perpetual usufruct of land on which aforenoewd
building is situated, were estimated at PLN 19.Rioni. As at 31 December 2010 the Group classiB88db%
part of this building to the investment propertyigtindicator is subject to revision on semi-anrhgsis).

Consolidated rental income in 2010 amounted to TBII89 (in 2009: TPLN 3,200) and was presentedafitp
or loss under “Revenue” - attributable costs weesg@nted under “Cost of sales”.

In order to secure the payment of other liabiliti@soup’s investment property was subject to mayggkor the
total amount of TPLN 8,978 as at 1 January 200Déasember 2009 the Group received a notice from the
District Court Katowice-Wschdd advising that thertgage was stroke off.
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16. Investments in associates

Basic financial data of associated entities isqmt=d below:

Carrying
% of sh Loss for th
° ;)\A;ezres value of  Assets Liabilities Equity Rewvenue ossrigg ©
shares pe
31 December 2010
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. 30.00% - 255 620 (365) (751)
Total -
31 December 2009
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. 30.00% 1161212 826 386 - (3937)
Total 116
1 January 2009
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. 30.00% 397 4010 2687 328 - 8m)
Total 397

17.0Other investments

Other long-term investments

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Non-current deposits 179 417 6 987 4200
Loans granted 612 - -
Other 69 69 69
Total other long-term investments 180 098 7 056 4 269

As at 31 December 2010 non-current deposits cosgbriash kept on reserve accounts designated ¢covygr
uninsured losses — TPLN 4,655 (31 December 2002NT#,387, 1 January 2009: TPLN 4,200), (ii) debt-
service — TPLN 36,230, (iii) capital expendituréPbase F2b — TPLN 136,410, together with accrogstests

of TPLN 1,723. All reserve accounts were estabtisie accordance with the provisions of Concession
Agreement and Project Loan Agreement. Additionalty at 31 December 2010 non-current deposits in the
amount of TPLN 400 (31 December 2009: TPLN 2,60@nprise cash secured at a deposit account as a
collateral for the multipurpose credit line (se¢en®b).

In the year 2010 the Group granted a loan to aoceged company Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. in amotint
TPLN 600. According to the agreement the loan ghbelrepaid by 31 March 2012.

Short-term investments

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Equity |nstr.u'ments available for sale (sharesarf-n 6056 5954 6993
related entities)

Investments in asset management funds 57 943 48 935 65 697
Other - - 1940

Total short-term investments 63 999 54 889 74 630

Financial instruments available for sale compnsestments in Centrozap S.A. and Dom Maklerski BBM.
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As at 31 December 2010 the shares of these congpari® subject to an impairment amounting to TP486
(31 December 2009: TPLN 6,431, 1 January 2009: TBI4AB1) and TPLN 782 (31 December 2009: TPLN
1,266, 1 January 2009: TPLN 1,468) respectivelye Buthe fact, that since fourth quarter of 2008t@ezap
S.A. is listed on Warsaw Stock Exchange, marketajiams of its shares have become the base fatetfiition

of their fair value. The effect of this valuatioapart from impairment recognition, is recognizedodser
comprehensive income in consolidated statememmpecehensive income (see also note 23b).

As at 1 January 2009 other short-term investmeamtspcised interest-bearing recognizance, paid aslateral
for performance guarantees issued.

18. Prepayments

The item relates to prepaid commission and finaeesulting expenses concerning not used part cfazdom

loan, as well as finance consulting expenses imvgleonsortium loan, accounted for using the effednterest
rate method, over the period of the loan. Prepaysnerre allocated proportionally to consecutiveadings of

the loan, following the expiry of credit availabjliperiod on 30 September 2010. Costs related tisathpart of
the loan in the amount of TPLN 1,308 are allocateprofit or loss for the period.
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19. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attribwablthe following:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property
Investments in associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term prepayments

Trade and other receivables
Short-terminvestments

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term prepayments
Long-termloans and borrowings
Long-termfinance lease liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Long-term deferred income and government grants

Employee benefits liabilities
Long-term provisions
Short-termloans and borrowings
Short-term finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short-term provisions

Short-term deferred income and government grants

Derivative financial instruments

Deferred tax assets/liabilities on temporary diffeences
Taxvalue of loss carry-forwards recognised

Deferred tax assets/liabilities
Set off of tax
Valuation adjustment

Net deferred tax assets/liabilities as in statemenof financial

position

Assets Liabilities
31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 January 200P 31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 January@®(*) 31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 Janu&§09 (*)
97 208 102 349 83845 (224) (238) (285) 96 984 102111 83560
- 10 - (150 399) §1R19) (151 444) (150 399) (138 609) (151 444)
464 471 479 - - - 464 471 479
47 26 10 - - - 47 26 10
- - - (327) - - (327) - -
- - - - (1 205) (1 400) - (1 205) (1 400)
438 647 1241 (1519) 472) (1162) 1081) 175 79
2023 2042 1845 82) (22) - 1941 2020 1845
- - - (196) (137) (59) (196) (137) (59)
- - - - (35) (40) 1 (35) (40)
- - - (3424) (5 245) (783) (3424) (5 245) (783)
91 123 116 - - - 91 123 116
28 257 26 395 25613 - - - 28 257 26 395 25613
3244 2852 3010 - - - 2443 2852 3010
569 223 200 - - - 569 223 200
97 793 85 307 93 640 - - - 97 793 85 307 93 640
886 240 104 (596) (279) - 290 (39) 104
42 51 267 - - - 42 51 267
1334 1323 553 - @ - 1334 1322 553
17721 11746 29 040 - - - 17721 11746 29 040
158 158 200 - - - 158 158 200
1001 304 3318 - - - 1001 304 3318
250 475 234 267 243 481 (156 767) (146 253) (155173 93 708 88 014 88 308
7670 9257 23761 - - - 7670 9257 23761
258 145 243524 267 242 (156 767) (146 253) (155173 101 378 97 271 112 069
(156 761) (146 253) (155 173) 156 761 146 253 155 173 - - -
(11113) (12 853) (27 183) - - - (11 113) (12 853) (27 183)
90 271 84 418 84 886 6) - - 90 265 84 418 84 886

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdauting policies, described in note 5.23
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Deferred tax assets have not been identified inafulount of excess of negative temporary differerengd tax
losses over positive temporary differences, dugntmertainty of utilization of tax losses and sorfidcemporary

differences.

Change in temporary differences during the period

1 January 2010 (*)

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property
Investments in associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term prepayments

Trade and other receivables
Short-term investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term prepayments
Long-termloans and borrowings
Long-termfinance lease liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Long-term deferred income and government grants
Employee benefits liabilities

Long-term provisions

Short-term loans and borrowings
Short-termfinance lease liabilities

Trade and other payables

Short-term provisions

Short-term deferred income and government grants
Derivative financial instruments

Taxvalue of loss carry-forwards recognised
Valuation adjustment

Change of deferred tax on temporary

differences recognisedin

31 December 2010

profit or loss other comprehensive
for the period income
102 111 (5127) - 96 984
(138 609) (11 790) - (150 399)
471 @) - 464
26 21 - 47
- (327) - (327)
(1 205) 1205 - -
175 (1 256) - (1nps
2020 (152) 73 1941
(137) (59) - (196)
(35) 35 - -
(5 245) 1821 - (3424)
123 (32 - 91
26 395 1862 - 28 257
2852 (409) - 2443
223 346 - 569
5 X7 12 486 - 97 793
(39) 329 - 290
51 ©)] - 42
1322 12 - 1334
11 746 5975 - 17721
158 - - 158
304 118 579 1001
9257 (1587) - 7670
(12 853) 1813 (73) (1B)
84418 5268 579 90 265

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdaating policies, described in note 5.23
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Change of deferred tax on temporary

differences recognisedin

1 January 2009 (*) 31 December 2009 (*)

profit or loss other comprehensive
for the period income

Property, plant and equipment 83 560 18 551 - 102 111
Intangible assets (151 444) 12835 - (138)60
Investment property 479 8) - 471
Investments in associates 10 16 - 26
Long-term prepayments (1 400) 195 - (1 205)
Trade and other receivables 79 96 - 175
Short-term investments 1845 (61) 623 2020
Cash and cash equivalents (59) (78) - (137)
Short-term prepayments (40) 5 - (35)
Long-termloans and borrowings (783) (4 462) - (5 245)
Long-termfinance lease liabilities 116 7 - 123
Other non-current liabilities 25613 782 - 26 395
Long-term deferred income and government grants 3010 (158) - 2852
Employee benefits liabilities 200 23 - 223
Long-term provisions 3610 (8333) - 85 307
Short-termloans and borrowings 104 (143) - (39)
Short-term finance lease liabilities 267 (216) - 51
Trade and other payables 553 769 - 1322
Short-term provisions 29040 (17 294) - 1674
Short-term deferred income and government grants 200 (42) - 158
Derivative financial instruments 3318 53 (3067) 304
Taxvalue of loss carry-forwards recognised 23761 (14 504) - 9257
Valuation adjustment (27 183) 14 566 (236) 8563)

84 886 2599 (3067) 84 418

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdaating policies, described in note 5.23
Tax losses

According to the tax law regulations, tax loss mmed in a given tax year can reduce taxable incowss the
next five consecutive tax years, however the deer@aany of those years cannot exceed 50% ofb#dgfor a
given year. As at 31 December 2010 the amountxdb&ses remaining to be utilized amounted to TRIONB75
(31 December 2009: TPLN 48,747, 1 January 2009:N'RR5,058). As at 31 December 2010 the Group
recognized deferred tax assets in the amount ofNTB&8 related to tax losses carry forwards. As ht 3
December 2009 and 1 January 2009 the Group didenoignize deferred tax assets on the tax losseg car
forwards due to uncertainty of utilization of capending benefits.

Amount of loss Expiry date
3436 2011
8202 2012
14 246 2013
11 436 2014
3055 2015
40 375
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20.Income tax receivables and liabilities

As at 31 December 2010 the income tax receivalnlesiated to TPLN 1,403 (31 December 2009: TPLN 1,482
1 January 2009: TPLN 3,360), of which TPLN 1,403 [(Bcember 2009: TPLN 1,376, 1 January 2009: TPLN
1,376) was the amount due to be settled with futuwzeme tax liabilities. Due to uncertain recovefysome of
these receivables as at 31 December 2010, an aldenaf TPLN 1,391 was recognized (31 December 2009:
TPLN 1,371, 1 January 2009: TPLN 1,385).

Income tax liabilities of TPLN 908 (31 December 9Q00PLN 28, 1 January 2009: TPLN 423) represent the
difference between payments made for the previndscarrent year and the amount of tax payable.

21.Trade and other receivables

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Trade receivables fromrelated parties 9 18 885

Trade receivables from other parties 11 339 10689 12 982

Recewables fromtaxes, dutlfes, social and health 7 858 20 255 11 440

insurances and other benefits

Other receivables from other parties 697 470 2412
19903 31432 27719

Receivables from taxes, duties, social and healfurance and other benefits consist mainly of amoun
receivable due to incorrect, according to the Gra@gision of the Comptroller of the | Tax Offige $osnowiec
dated 26 August 2008, that determined the excespof VAT over output VAT for the period of Augu2004,

as consequence of which the Group paid the taoatytthe amount of TPLN 5,952.

On 2 November 2009 the Provincial Administrativeu@dn Gliwice dismissed the complaint of the Grdap
respect of the decision of the Director of Tax Chamin Katowice dated 30 March 2009, which partipkin
effect the aforementioned decision of the Compradif the | Tax Office in Sosnowiec dated 26 AugeD8.
On 10 February 2010 the Group exercised its rightfihal appeal. The Group considers chances fsitipe
outcome of the dispute as high.

Trade receivables are presented net of allowameedolibtful debts amounting to TPLN 110,556 (31 é&mwsber
2009: TPLN 114,550, 1 December 2009: TPLN 136,393).

The table below presents ageing of trade and a#heivables together with the amount of correspundi
allowances.

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009
Gross owverdue receivables

up to 1 month 35 227 699
1-6 months 37 42 706
6 months-1 year 30 18 223
over lyear 117 652 121 618 145 286
117 754 121 905 146 914
allowances for overdue and doubtful debts (110 328) 114 837) (136 180)

Net overdue receivables 7 426 7 568 10734
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Change in allowances for bad debt was as follows:

2010 2009
Allowances for bad debts as at 1 January (114 550) (136 393)
Allowances recognised (94) (61)
Allowances reversed & 83 7110
Allowances utilised 2 250 14794
Allowances for bad debts as at 31 December (110 556) (114 550)

The allowances for doubtful debts within trade resmieles were recognized due to expected difficsiltieth
collection of amounts due from some customers. allewances for other receivables concern mainly
receivables arisen as a result of loans guaragteesed to entities which were not able to seligrtliabilities.

According to the Group, the collection of receivabivhich have not been subject to allowances isoubtful.
Overdue net receivables in amount of TPLN 7,100saraired on the customer’s property, which valueeds
the value of these receivables. Fair value of taidd mentioned, based on expert's evaluations wuctad in
2007 and 2011, amounts to PLN 11.9 million.

In 2010, in line with received payments and basedmalysis of probability of post balance sheet datrieval,
the Group reversed some allowances for overduévediles concerning activity discontinued in predoears.
Allowances amounting to TPLN 1,838 were reverséayloch TPLN 1,496 concerned Stalexport Wielkopalsk
Sp. z 0.0. w upadkai, TPLN 265 Seba Sp. z 0.0. and TPLN 77 othetiesti

22.Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Cash in hand 48 58 50
Bank balances 9 427 7022 7373
Current bank deposits 202 880 123 368 106 855
Restricted bank balances 180 159 152
Cash in transit 280 239 209

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of financial position
Bank overdraft - - (D)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of cash flows

212 815 130 846 114 639

212 815 130 846 114 638

Restricted bank balances refer to resources atispesal of company social contribution fund.
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23.Equity

a. Share capital
31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Number of shares at the beginning of the period 2827023 247 262 023 247 262 023
Number of shares at the end of the period (fulligdpa 247 262 023 247 262 023 247 262 023
Nominal value of shares (PLN) 2 2 2
Nominal value of A-series issue 16 682 16 682 16 682
Nominal value of B-series issue 986 986 986
Nominal value of D-series issue 8 000 8 000 8 000
Nominal value of E-series issue 189 856 189 856 189 856
Nominal value of F-series issue 100 000 100 000 100 000
Nominal value of G-series issue 179 000 179 000 179 000

494 524 494 524 494 524

Since November 1993 until December 1996 the Grqgpaded in hyperinflation. IAS Z8inancial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies requires restatement of each element of shareatgppart from undistributed
profit and revaluation reserves) using general epriadexation in hyperinflation. Such retrospective
implementation would result in decrease of retaieadhings in that period by TPLN 18,235 and in siipent

of retained earnings in that same amount.

In 2010 the share capital wasn’t subject to anygha.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled todginds as declared from time to time and are ettile®ne vote
per share at shareholders meeting of the Compdhghares entitle the shareholders to Company’'stass the
same extent in case of division.

b. Fair value reserve

All profits and losses from valuation of availalite-sale financial assets (apart from impairmerssé&s and
exchange rate changes), for which it is possibléetdare their fair value based on regulatory ntaikein any
other reliable way, are attributed to this itemtloé equity. In 2010, the corresponding lossesbatizble to
owners of the Company amounted to TPLN 377 (200:N 1,200).

c. Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve balance is the result of valuatibderivatives meeting the requirements of castv fledge
accounting. Recognized as effective changes tosédire of cash flow hedging instruments, amounte@RLN
3,049 (negative value) in 2010 (2009: TPLN 16,144jis value has been adjusted by change in deféased
amounting to TPLN 579 (2009: TPLN 3,067 (negatiatie)), recognised in other comprehensive income.

d. Other reserve capitals and supplementary capital

Other reserve capitals may be created by the Geketing from a part or total of approved profufthe
companies constituting the Group. General Meetiay @so define a particular aim to which such reses
should be assigned.
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24.Earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share wameed based on the net profit attributable to shalders of

the Parent Company of TPLN 10,248 (2009: TPLN 3 %8W a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31 December 2010 of 247,262 #mol81 December 2009: 247,262 thousand).

Net profit per ordinary share attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company

2010 2009 (*)
Profit for the period attributable to shareholdefshe
1024 3787
Parent Company (in TPLN) S
We|ghted' average number of ordinary shares atride e 247 262 247 262
of the period (thousands of shares)
Profit for the period per ordinary share attributable to 0.04 00

shareholders of the Parent Company (in PLN)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofwating policies, described in note 5.23

As at 31 December 2010, 31 December and 1 Jan@®¥ Ao factors were determined that would result in
dilution of profit per one share.

25.Loans and borrowings

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 January 2(09

Non-current portion of secured bank loans 329 876 122 395 65 877
Non-current loans and borrowings 329 876 122 395 65 877
Current portion of secured bank loans 13 627 1470 1487
Current loans and borrowings 13 627 1470 1488

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofatting policies, described in note 5.23

On 28 December 2005, a long-term loan agreement sigiseed by and between Stalexport Autostrada
Matopolska S.A. and commercial banks. In 2010 tregany made further drawings in the total amourRldfl

230 million. As at 31 December 2010 the nominalbeabf the loan amounted to PLN 360 million. Theddre
availability period expired on 30 September 2010.

On 26 October 2009, a Multipurpose credit line agrent was signed by Stalexport Autostrady S.A.Rortis
Bank Polska S.A. that enabled crediting in fornbahk overdrafts (up to TPLN 400) and guarantee (lipeto
TPLN 2,000). On 25 November 2010 the agreementaltased — new provisions allow crediting only inrfo
of overdraft (with TPLN 200 limit). The agreemempéees on 25 October 2019.
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a. Terms and conditions of loans and borrowings repayment

Liabilities at  Liabilities at Liabilities at

Currency Nominal rate Repayment 31 December 31 December 1 January
year 2010 2009 () 2009 (*)
Loans
Bank overdraft PLN - - 1
Banking Consortium PLN WIBOR 6M + margin 2020** 343 503 123 865 67 364
Total loans and borrowings 343503 123 865 67 365

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdaating policies, described in note 5.23
(**) - payments up to year 2020

b. Collateral established on Group’s property

Apart from securities established on property, pkm equipment described in note 13, the mostifsgnt
collateral established in relation to bank loariudes:
- pledge of shares of Stalexport Autoroute S.a tdleRport Autostrada Matopolska S.A. and Stalexport
Transroute Autostrada S.A.,
- transfer of rights deriving from agreements relatethe project Toll Motorway A-4 Katowice-Krakow,
- transfer of rights to bank accounts of Stalexpartostrada Matopolska S.A.,
- cession of Stalexport Autostrada Matopolska S.Aing$ in relation to the project Toll Motorway A-4
Katowice-Krakow.

26.Finance lease liabilities
Repayment schedule of finance lease liabilities

Minimum lease

Interest Principal

31 December 2010 payments -
up to 1year 266 48 218
1-5years 522 43 479
Total 788 91 697

Minimum lease Interest Principal

31 December 2009 payments P
up to 1year 332 62 270
1-5years 723 77 646
Total 1055 139 916

Minimum lease Interest Principal

1 January 2009 payments pa
up to 1year 1521 101 1420
1-5years 750 90 660
Total 2271 191 2080

As described in note 13, the leased assets saxage bbligations until the repayment of financeddabilities.
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27.Employee benefits liabilities

Non-current 31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 January 2309
Retirement pay liabilities 233 224 320
Annuity severance pay liabilities 21 22 18
Jubilee bonuses liabilities 607 569 573
Other employee benefits 1963 - -
Total 2824 815 911
Current

Retirement pay liabilities 65 74 46
Annuity severance pay liabilities 2 2 2
Jubilee bonuses liabilities 58 72 56
Other employee benefits - 173 -
Total 125 321 104

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofatting policies, described in note 5.23

Amounts of future employee benefits liabilities wealculated on the basis of actuarial appraisaehno

As at 31 December 2010 other employee benefitstitatesa forecasted bonus payment for which Comjgany
Management Board is eligible based on 3-year imestheme endorsed by the Supervisory Board i6.201

Employee benefits liabilities were calculated adawg to following assumptions:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009
Discount rate 5.2%-5.5% 5.8% 5.5%
Future remuneration increase 2%-5% 2%-5% 2,5%-4%

28. Other non-current liabilities

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Liabilities upon guarantees granted 33 564 46 556 59 549
Concession payments 148 720 138919 132 304
Total 182 284 185475 191 853

Liabilities upon guarantees granted relate to guama provided to the State Treasury in respectoah |
guarantee given to Huta Ostrowiec for modernizatibtihe production line. In August 2008 the Compaegan
the repayment of principal liability. Repayment edtle for these guarantee liabilities is presemédtie chart

below.

According to the Concession Agreement Stalexpotbstada Matopolska S.A. is obliged to make Corioess
payments to National Road Fund (acquired liabiléiating to loan drawn by the Treasury from EBRDhe
nominal value of the liability according to appendiof the Concession Agreement amounts to TPLNZR?

In the process of preparation of the consolidaiedntial statements as at the day and for the gaded
31 December 2010 the Group changed the expectedidehof outflows regarding those liabilities. Dioethe
fact, that the present value of expected cash flomged on the new schedule of outflows (calculasidg the
previous discount rate) differed by more than 108tnfthe present value of expected cash flows bagsdtie
previous schedule of outflows, the Group derecaghithe liability and recognized a new liability for
Concession payments. A discount rate of 5.64% wed to discount the new liability (as at 31 Decen2®®9:
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5.95%). The difference in value of the liabilitysudting from that operation amounted to TPLN 3,228 was
recognized as financial expense for the periodrisée 11).

Repayment schedule for other non-current liabilities

As at 31 December 2010

Liabilities upon guarantees granted
Concession payments
Total

As at 31 December 2009

Liabilities upon guarantees granted
Concession payments

Total

As at 1 January 2009

Liabilities upon guarantees granted

Concession payments
Total

Total uptolyear 1-3years S3years owver 5 years
46 556 12 992 25985 7579 -
148 720 - - - 148 720
195 276 12 992 25985 7579 148 720
Total uptol year 1-3years S3years over 5 years
59 548 12 992 25985 20571 -
138 919 - - - 138 919
198 467 12 992 25985 20571 138919
Total uptol year 1-3years 3years ower 5 years
72 541 12 992 25985 25985 7579
132 304 - - - 132 304
204 845 12 992 25985 25 985 139 883

29.Deferred income and government grants

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

Non-current
Deferred rent income (mainly

1 January 2009

. . 12 568 13400 14 225
Passengers Service Sites)
Other 108 1396 1624
Total 12 676 14 796 15 849
Current
Deferred rent |nco.me (r_namly 805 825 805
Passengers Service Sites)
Other 7 228 228
Total 832 1053 1053
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30. Provisions
Provisions for

Provisions for .
capital Other

motorway i . Total

N resurfacing expenditures provisions
Non-current provisions (Phase II)
Balance at 1 January 2009 (*) 4 646 489 150 - 493 796
Additions, including: 1862 20 228 - 22 090
- dueto discounting 270 20 228 - 20 498
Change of estimates - (8 248) - (8 248)
Reclassifications - (58 656) - (58 656)
Balance at 31 December 2009 (*) 6 508 442 474 - 448 982
Balance at 1 January 2010 (*) 6 508 442 474 - 448 982
Additions, including: 15904 20 802 = 36 706
- dueto discounting 715 20 802 - 21517
Change of estimates 5247 111 955 - 117 202
Reclassifications - (88 192) - (88 192)
Balance at 31 December 2010 27 659 487 039 - 514 698
Current provisions
Balance at 1 January 2009 (*) 37 388 91 830 23622 152 840
Additions, including: 20 237 1167 2385 23789
- dueto discounting 1446 1167 - 2613
Change of estimates - (28 193) - (28 193)
Utilisation (54 496) (66 196) (24574) (145 266)
Reclassifications - 58 656 - 58 656
Balance at 31 December 2009 (*) 3129 57 264 1433 61 826
Balance at 1 January 2010 (*) 3129 57 264 1433 61 826
Additions, including: - 3154 1774 4928
- dueto discounting - 3154 - 3154
Change of estimates - (15671) - (15671)
Utilisation (1917) (41 183) = (43 100)
Reversal 1 212) - (53) (1 265)
Reclassifications - 88 192 - 88192
Balance at 31 December 2010 - 91 756 3154 94 910

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofwaating policies, described in note 5.23

Provision for capital expenditures is recognizethim present value of future construction costsetincurred in
relation to section Katowice-Krakéw of A4 motorwéhase Il), due to obligations undertaken by Casioas
Holder under the Concession Agreement (see note 4).

As at 31 December 2010 the Group changed estimmatggding discount rates used for calculation &f th
present value of provision for resurfacing (as laiD&cember 2009 6% rate was used, currently ties range
from 4.25% to 5.24%) and provision for capital exgitures of Phase Il (as at 31 December 2009 ttes ra
ranged from 5.07% to 5.78%, currently from 4.25%btd4%). As result of those changes the provisam f
resurfacing increased by TPLN 7,555 in 2010, whichine with IAS 37 was recognized in operating expes
for the period. At the same time the provision ¢apital expenditures (Phase II) increased by TPL19&

49



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

which was recognized as an increase of concessiangible assets according to accounting policgrilesd in
note 5.22.(iii).b.

As at 31 December 2010 the Group made also a ri@huof provision for resurfacing and provisiom éapital
expenditures of Phase Il following the change diimetes regarding expected expenditures and futomks
schedule. As result of that changes the provisiorrdsurfacing decreased by TPLN 2,308, whichrie lvith
IAS 37 decreased operating expenses for the pefibthe same time the provision for capital expéumgis
(Phase 1) increased by TPLN 94,086, which was geized as an increase of concession intangibletsasse
according to accounting policy described in no&2Xiii).b.

Other provisions as at 31 December 2010 compriselyna

0] provision recognised based on the sentence of Qitiropeand Consumer Protection Court in Warsaw
in the amount of TPLN 1,300:

In October 2007, the Office of Competition and Goner Protection commenced an antimonopoly
proceeding against Stalexport Autostrada MatopolSk&. in relation to the suspicion of abuse of
dominant position on the market of paid passagehefsection of the motorway A-4 Katowice —
Krakow, through the imposition of unfair prices ftre crossing through the paid section of the
motorway in the magnitude as stated in the prigieduring the time of repairing of this sectiontiog
motorway, causing significant hindrance to vehtcddfic. In response to the summons of the Offtbe,
Group submitted relevant information required itatien to the proceedings in progress, and it idsue
the necessary explanations.

On 25 April 2008, the Office of Competition and Gamer Protection issued a decision, in which it has
been recognized that the Stalexport Autostrada pldéka S.A. breached the art. 9 sect. 2 pt. 1 ®f th
act of law on competition and consumer protectisimultaneously instructing it to relinquish the
practices being the subject matter of the antimohoproceedings. The Office of Competition and
Consumer Protection imposed on the Group a finhpeiaalty in the amount of TPLN 1,300 payable to
the State Treasury. The Group launched an appdia¢ tGompetition and Consumer Protection Court in
Warsaw. On 10 May 2010 the abovementioned cowedsa sentence upholding the decision of the
Office of Competition and Consumer Protection. GJ2ne 2010 the Group made an appeal to the
Appeal Competition and Consumer Protection CoulvVersaw. At the moment the date of the hearing
in Appeal Court is unknown.

(ii) provision recognized based on the sentence of tseid Court in Katowice dated 18 December 2009
responding to claim lodged by CTL Maczki Bér Sm.a. for compensation for the use of certain Idts o
land in the motorway lane without valid agreem@itie court awarded to CTL Maczki Bor Sp. z 0.0. the
amount of TPLN 40 plus interest from Stalexport dattady S.A. and TPLN 996 plus interest from
Stalexport Autostrada Matopolska S.A. Abovementibitgerest were also subject to provision. On 25
January 2010 both Stalexport Autostrady S.A. arale$port Autostrada Malopolska S.A. appealed
against the sentence of the District Court in Katewto the Appeal Court in Katowice. During the
hearing dated 26 May 2010 the Appeal Court askedDistrict Court to supplement documentation.
During the last hearing on 13 October 2010 the Ap@®urt announced 27 October 2010 as the date of
the pronouncement of the sentence. On 27 Octolddy @ date of the pronouncement was postponed
again by the Appeal Court and a new date was ot se
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31.Trade and other payables (short-term)

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Trade payables to related parties 36 16 577 7979
Trade payables to other parties 5259 6 102 6 044
Amounts due to taxes, duties, social and healthrarsce

and other benefits O 1245 2842
Payroll liabilities 1753 1883 1490
Guarantees received 500 - -
Liabilities upon guarantees granted 12 992 12 992 12 992
Other payables and accruals to related parties 9403 12 497 3305
Other payables and accruals to other parties 12 245 14 428 14 619

43 944 65 724 49 271

The balance of other payables and accruals coma@itdy of suspended amounts being held as guardate
execution of construction contracts and guaranggosits concerning already completed constructiorksv
The value of above-mentioned payables amountedPtdNT20,633 as at 31 December 2010 (as at 31 Decembe
2009: TPLN 24,797, 1 January 2009: TPLN 16,027).
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32.Financial instruments

a. Classification of financial instruments

31 December 2010

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-current deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Hedge derivatives

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Total

31 December 2009 (*)

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-current deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Hedge derivatives

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilties measured at amortized cost

Total

1 January 2009 (*)

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-current deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Hedge derivatives

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Total

Non-current Current Total
- 57 943 57 943
69 6 056 6 125
179 417 - 179 417
- 212 815 212 815
- (5 269) (5 269)
612 12 045 12 657
2(639) (56 033) (568 672)
(332541) 227 557 (104 984)
Non-current Current Total
- 48 935 48 935
69 5954 6023
6 987 - 6 987
- 130 846 130 846
- (1 599) (1 599)
- 11177 11177
8(B06) (66 219) (374 735)
(301 460) 129 094 (172 366)
Non-current Current Total
- 65 697 65 697
69 6993 7 062
4 200 - 4200
- 114 639 114 639
- (17 461) (17 461)
- 18 219 18 219
8(290) (49 337) (307 727)
(254 121) 138 750 (115 371)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofaating policies, described in note 5.23

Within financial assets measured at fair value ughoprofit or loss, the Group presents investmentsssets

management funds, which are recognised in shartt@restments (note 17).

Available-for-sale financial assets include maisiyares of Centrozap S.A. and Dom Maklerski BDM S.A.

Non-current deposits are described in note 17addHinancial statements.

Loans and receivables comprise loans granted asisvgbde and other receivables.

Financial liabilities recognized at amortized cioslude trade payables, other payables, loans amdwings,

and finance lease liabilities.
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b. Effective interest rates and appraisal dates

The charts below contain effective interest rategnocome-earning assets and interest-bearingitiakil divided

into the following groups:
31 December 2010

Non-current deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans granted

Investments in asset management funds - bonds epaisits
Project Loan Agreement

Concession payments

Finance lease liabilities

Liabilities upon guarantees granted

31 December 2009 (*)

Non-current deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments in asset management funds - bonds epaisits
Project Loan Agreement

Concession payments

Finance lease liabilities

Liabilities upon guarantees granted

1 January 2009 (*)

Non-current deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments in asset management funds - bonds epasis
Other short-terminvestments

Project Loan Agreement

Concession payments

Finance lease liabilities

Liabilities upon guarantees granted

Effective rate
3.95%
3.78%
5.64%
4.44%
7.05%
5.64%
6.65%
5.14%

Effective rate
4.17%
5.24%
4.30%
7.20%
5.95%
5.74%
5.20%

Effective rate
5.70%
5.25%
6.10%
4.60%
9.64%
5.95%
13.12%
7.79%

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes ofatting policies, described in note 5.23

c. Fair value

Fair value of financial instruments

Total <6 months >5 years
179 417 179 417 -
212 815 212 815 -

612 612 -
37 286 37 286 -
343 503 343 503 -
148 720 - 148720
697 697 -
46 556 46 556 -
Total <6 months >5 years
6 987 6 987 -
130 846 130 846 -
36917 36 917 -
123 865 123 865 -
138 919 - 138919
916 916 -
59 548 59 548 -
Total <6 months >5 years
4200 4200 -
114 639 114 639 -
63 898 63 898 -
1940 1940 -
67 365 67 365 -
132 304 - 132304
2080 2080 -
72541 72541 -

The following are details of the fair value of threancial instruments for which it is practicabtedstimate such

value.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and short-term bank loans. The carrying amounts of
instruments listed above approximate fair valueabbse of quick maturity of these instruments.

Trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables. The carrying amounts of instruments listed above

approximate fair value because of short term naititbese instruments.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings, loans granted. The carrying amount of instruments listed above

approximate fair value due to the variable natdrhe related interest rates, based on market.rates
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Available-for-sale financial assets. Include shares disclosed at their fair value thasetheir market value at the
balance sheet date (without consideration of tietitsa costs). Shares of companies which are ntdisn
financial markets, and for which there are no alitve measures to define their fair value, areldsed at cost
net of any impairment losses.

Investments in assets management funds. The carrying amount equals their fair value based market
quotations.

For concession payments it is not possible to agbedr fair value due to the lack of active mariketsimilar
financial instruments.

Hierarchy of financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments carried at fair value carlassified to the following valuation methods:

» Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active m@rker identical assets or liabilities,

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includdithiw Level 1 that are observable for the assdiadility,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectlye(i.derived from prices),

» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that auet based on observable market data (unobserirghles).

For the valuation of available-for-sale financiabats measured at fair value in the amount of TRJ199 as at

31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: TPLN 4,58Bnlaly 2009: TPLN 5,822) and investments in asset
management funds measured at fair value in the ahodd PLN 57,943 as at 31 December 2010 (31 Deeemb
2009: TPLN 48,935, 1 January 2009: TPLN 65,697yell& method was used.

For the valuation of derivatives carried at faifueain the amount of TPLN 5,269 as at 31 Decembd@0Z31
December 2009: TPLN 1,599, 1 January 2009: TPLME), Level 2 method was used.

d. Hedge accounting

Cash flow hedge accounting

The Group hedges cash flows resulting from paymehiaterest related to Project Loan Agreement eetw
SAM S.A. and banks’ consortium. For cash flow beimgdged cash flow hedge accounting is applied.
Derivatives i.e. interest rate swap are used agihgdnstruments.

Cash flows subject to hedge are expected to ta@ph semi-annual periods between the 31 Marc® 20d
the 28 December 2020. The expected date of hedigingaction recognition in profit or loss matches date of
cash flows being hedged (see also notes 23c arid Befvative financial instruments, including hedge

accounting).

Liability deriving from the valuation of the hedgrinstruments as at 31 December 2010 amounts tdNTPL
5,269 (31 December 2009: TPLN 1,599, 1 January 20BN 17,461). The impact of future cash flow hedg
accounting identified as effective, was recognizedther comprehensive income.

33. Financial risk management

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thedap if a customer or counterparty fails to meetcitgtractual

obligations, and it arises principally from the Gpés receivables from customers and investmentriissu The
Group places its cash and cash equivalents indiabimstitutions with high credit ratings.
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The following table shows the maximum Group’s expedo credit risk:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Other long-term investments 180 098 7 056 4 269
Short-terminvestments 63 999 54 889 74 630
Trade and other receivables 19 903 31432 27719
Cash and cash equivalents 212 815 130 846 114 639
Total 476 815 224 223 221 257

b. Stock exchange indexes fluctuations risk

Stock exchange indexes fluctuations risk relatesstoof possible financial losses due to fluctoas of stock
exchange quotations. The risk concerns the shdrgmldic listed companies within investments in edss
management funds and shares of public listed coimpalisclosed as available-for-sale financial asset

The following table shows Group’s maximum expodorstock exchange indexes fluctuations risk:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

Investments in asset management funds - shares 4417 2105 1799
Available-for-sale financial assets 4199 4581 5822
Total 8616 6 686 7621

c. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market deaaupply and prices, as well as other factorsaffiéct the
Group'’s financial results and controlled assetsiegbuch as foreign exchange rates, interest aa@scost of
capital). The objective of market risk managementa manage and control market risk exposures nvithi
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the interest rate riskeslanainly to cash and cash equivalents, interesstitg loans
and borrowings and other payables based on floattegest rate WIBOR + margin.

The table below presents susceptibility profilee(f@roup’s maximum exposure) to the risk of interase
fluctuations through presentation of financial instents according to fixed and floating intereg¢:ra

Current value Current value Current value
31 December 2010 31 December 2009 (*) 1 January 200p

Fixed interest rate instruments
Financial assets 202 98 36 137 50 134

Financial liabilities - -

202 989 36 137 541
Floating interest rate instruments
Financial assets 229 80 138 613 128 403
Financial liabilities (534 814) (321 778) (272 802)
(305 008) (183 165) (144 399)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes abaating policies, described in note 5.23

In accordance with provisions of financing agreets@oncluded on 27 May 2008, SAM S.A. and threek&an
WestLB Bank Polska S.A., PEKAO S.A., DEPFA Bankuek interest rate swaps transactions in relatmn t
Project Loan Agreement. The aim of those transastivas to swap cash flow based on floating intenast
(6M WIBOR) for cash flow based on fixed interederaAs at 31 December 2010, SAM S.A. owned intaiast
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swaps hedging against the risk of future interatgts fluctuations in relation to bank loan amouptmPLN 190
million, which constituted up to 50% of maximum amo of bank loan, which might have been drawn in
accordance with Project Loan Agreement (duringpiiieod from 30 September 2008 to 30 September #8410
transactions secured interest flows in relatiobaok loan of PLN 70 million, during the period frdnOctober
2010 to 28 December 2020 the transactions will Bedterest flows in relation to bank loan up to PL8D
million). The maturities of secured interest paytsein hedging transactions are in line with the urides of
interest outflows resulting from the Credit Agreare

In managing interest rate risk, the Group, in addito transactions described above, aims to retheémpact
of interest rate fluctuations via current monitgriof financial market. Moreover, some investments a
independent on WIBOR rate fluctuations.

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis dtfit and fixed interest rate financial instrumesntsl hedge
derivatives to changes of market interest rateg. fBble below presents the impact of increase oredse of
interest rate by 100 basis points on profit or fegsthe period and equity. The analysis assumatah other
variables such as foreign exchange rates remaistaran The analysis was performed for current yesiod

and comparable previous year period.

Profit or loss for the period Equity
increase decrease increase decrease
100 pb 100 pb 100 pb 100 pb

2010
Floating interest rate instruments (3 050) 3050 (3 050) 3050
Fixed interest rate instruments (461) 487 (461) 487
Hedge derivatives - - 9 864 (9 864)
2009 (*)
Floating interest rate instruments (1832) 1832 (1832 1832
Fixed interest rate instruments (316) 1568 (316) 1568
Hedge derivatives - - 9515 (9515)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cbawting policies, described in note 5.23

Foreign currency risk

At the end of 2010 foreign currency risk concernash and cash equivalents and trade and otherlpayab

The table below shows profile of the Group’s seifisiimaximum exposure) to exchange rate changeuth
presentation of financial instruments by currenaieshich they are denominated:

Assets/liabilities by currency after conversion@PLN (in TPLN)
31 December 2010

EUR usD
Cash and cash equivalents 6 27 22
Trade and other payables (411) -
Statement of financial position exposure (135) 22
31 December 2009

EUR usD
Cash and cash equivalents 1011 191
Trade and other payables (407) -
Statement of financial position exposure 604 191
1 January 2009

EUR uUsD
Cash and cash equivalents 1 92 439
Trade and other payables (601) -
Statement of financial position exposure 320 439
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The Group performed sensitivity analysis of finahanstruments denominated in foreign currenciesate
fluctuations. The table below presents the impéstr@ngthening or weakening of Polish zloty byesgent in
relation to all foreign currencies, on profit os$ofor the period and equity. This analysis assuhegsall other
variables, in particular interest rates, remainstamnt.

Profit or loss for the period Equity
increase of exchange decrease of exchange increase of exchange decrease of exchange
rates by 5% rates by 5% rates by 5% rates by 5%
2010 (6) 6 (6) 6
2009 40 (40) 40 (40)

d. Risk of loss of financial liquidity
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will nbe able to meet its financial obligations as tralydue.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is tesuwe, possession of financial means necessarylfib fu
Group’s financial and investment liabilities usittg most attractive sources of financing.

Liguidity management focuses on detailed analyglisnning and taking suitable actions related to kingy
capital and net financial indebtedness.

The table below shows the maximum Group’s exposuliguidity risk:

31 December 2010
Contracted cash

Non-derivative financial liabilities Carrying value flowvalue upto 6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years over s

Long term liabilties upon guarantees granted 46 556 (50 944) (7 623) (7 456) (14 412) (21 453) -

Concession payments 148 720 (222 918) - - - - (222 918)

Secured bank loans 343503 (491 145) (9738) (22 421) (45 254) (139 441) (274 291)

Finance lease liabilities 697 (788) (133) (133) (274) (248) -

Trade and other payables 30952 (30 952) (30952) - - - -

Derivatives inflows/(outflows)

Interest rate swaps used for hedging 5269 (5642) (1862) (1 415) (1 495) (556) (314)
575 697 (802 389) (50 308) (31 425) B35) (161 698) (497 523)

31 December 2009 (*)

Non-derivative financial liabilities Carrying value Cor;ltcr)svc\t;clceash upto 6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years over 8y's

Long termliabilties upon guarantees granted 59 548 (66 779) (7 979) (7 805) (15 104) (35891) -

Concession payments 138919 (223 870) - - - - (223 870)

Secured bank loans 123 865 (187 861) (3367) (3958) (12 286) (51 253) (116 997)

Finance lease liabilities 916 (1 055) (200) (132) (265) (458)

Trade and other payables 52732 (52 732) (52 732) - - -

Derivatives inflows/(outflows)

Interest rate swaps used for hedging 1599 1732) (585) (525) (1222) 1293 (693)
377579 (534 029) (64 863) (12 420) &R) (86 309) (341 560)

1 January 2009 (*)

Non-derivative financial liabilities Carrying value Cor;ltcr)svc\t;clceash upto 6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years over 8y's

Long termliabilties upon guarantees granted 72541 (96 946) (8399) (9 196) (17 679) (46 957) (14 715)

Concession payments 132 304 (223 870) - - - - (223 870)

Secured bank loans 67 365 (118 843) (2909) (2941) (5834) (29 366) (77 793)

Finance lease liabilities 2080 (2 257) (829) (699) (286) (448)

Trade and other payables 36 279 (36 279) (36 279) - - -

Derivatives inflows/(outflows)

Interest rate swaps used for hedging 17 461 21541 (252) 627 1292 9982 9892
328 030 (456 654) (48 663) (12 209) B7) (66 789) (306 486)

(*) - restated in accordance with the changes cdaating policies, described in note 5.23
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e. Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain strong capitas®awhich should be foundation for positive peroepof the
Group by investors, creditors and market and shimad to further business development. The Groupitois

the changes in ownership, return on equity and/eebity ratios.

The Group’s aim is to achieve return on equityoratithe level considered satisfactory by the stwders.

The Parent company and its subsidiaries, whichttagejoint stock companies, are subject to the et

resulting from art. 396 8 1 of the Polish Commdr€iampanies Code, which requires that at least 8@atit

for a given business year should be assigned fgplementary capital, until this capital reacheteast 1/3 of
the share capital.

There were no changes in the capital managemeisyhlring the year.

34.Operating leases

Operating lease agreements, where the Group is adessee

The estimated payments resulting from operatingdemreements are shown below:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009 1 January 2009

up to lyear 47 1 59
1-5years 52 - 16
Total 99 1 75

35. Capital expenditure commitments

On 1 December 2010 SAM S.A. concluded the tendeClantract F2b-2-2009 “Modernization of motorway
dehydration in Balice (km 398+700 — 401+100)". Teentract for the total amount of TPLN 17,316 was
assigned to consortium of Pavimental S.p.A. andriaval Polska Sp. z 0.0. The execution of the reahtis
planned between December 2010 and January 2012.

In December 2009 SAM S.A. selected a contractahentender for the completion of Contract F2b-1200
“Repairs of 22 bridges”. The contract was signethwbnsortium of Pavimental S.p.A. and Pavimentisiix
Sp. z o.0. for the total amount of TPLN 103,194e Torks have started in 2010 and should be contplstehe
end of 2012. In 2010 repairs of 8 bridges were detad. The value of completed construction workeamed
to TPLN 34,742 (34% of contract value) as at 31dpawer 2010.

36. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities relate to guarantees grantedelated entities amounting to TPLN 15,472 (Hc&mber
2009: TPLN 14,552, 1 January 2009: TPLN 14,371)
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37.Transactions with related parties

a. Intergroup receivables and liabilities

Receivables  Loans granted Payables
31 December 2010
Pavimental S.p.A. S.A. Oddziat w Polsce 4 - 9389
Pavimental Polska Sp. z 0.0. 5 - 534
Atlantia S.p.A. - - 16
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. - 612 -
Total 9 612 9939
Receivables  Loans granted Payables
31 December 2009
Pavimental S.p.A. S.A. Oddziat w Polsce 7 - 29 055
Pavimental Polska Sp. z 0.0. 11 - -
Atlantia S.p.A. - - 16
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. - - 2
Total 18 - 29073
Receivables  Loans granted Payables
1 January 2009
Pavimental S.p.A. S.A. Oddziat w Polsce 11 - 11 267
Atlantia S.p.A. - - 17
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. 874 - -
Total 885 - 11284

b. Transactions with related parties

Cost of acquired

Other CEgiE

Revenue Other income Finance income . expenditures and
goods and senices expenses :
2010 resurfacing works
Pavimental S.p.A. S.A. Oddziatw Polsce - 6 - - - (38512)
Pavimental Polska Sp. z 0.0. 92 20 = (16) (329) -
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. 55 - 12 - - -
Total 147 26 12 (16) (329) (38512)
Cost of Capital expenditures

Revenue Other income acquiredgoods  and resurfacing
2009 and senices works
Pavimental S.p.A. S.A. Oddziatw Polsce 6 31 (31) (106 879)
Pavimental Polska Sp. z 0.0. 95 1 - -
Autostrada Mazowsze S.A. 887 - - -
Wycliffe Management Sp. zo.o0. - - (86) -
Total 988 32 (117) (106 879)

59



STALEXPORT AUTOSTRADY S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements as at the day arfdr the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(all amountsin PLN thousand (TPLN), unless stated otherwise)

c. Transactions with key personnel

The remuneration of the key and supervising permsioniithe Group was as follows:

2010 2009

Parent Company

Management Board 4514 3856
Supervisory Board 85 88
Subsidiaries

Management Boards 1825 1988
Supervisory Boards 364 637
Total 8 602 9719

In 2010 and 2009 the Group did not grant any laartke Members of Management Board or Supervisogré
Members of the companies constituting the Groug Ghoup did not grant to the above mentioned inldiais

any advance payments or guarantees.

38. Subsequent events

There were no significant subsequent events, timild be disclosed in the consolidated financiaeshents for
2010.
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